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2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2032
Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
O Conference Committee

Hearing Date January 10, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
1 X 0 to end
1 X 2.7 to end
2 X 0t0l.9
(1/29) 2 X 7.5 to end
3 X 0to 7.5
(1/31) 3 X 44.9 to0 53.1
Committee Clerk Signature /0071@)& ij@
Minutes:

The committee was called to order. Roll call was taken: all members present, The heating was
opened on SB2032: relating to merging the division of community services, department of
econotnic development and finance, and tourism department into a department of commerce,
Lee Peterson, Director, Economic Development and Finance, testified in appreciation of the
work done by all the people involved in this bill. In favor of consolidation.

Tony Grindberg, Senator District 41, IBL Interim Committee, overview of the work done in the
last two years, During last session a study resolution was attached to ED&F project to Jook at the
issue of privatizing this agency. Looked at the state of Wyoming model, Economic development

is a process not an event. Keep three things in mind as you listen to testimony: 1) Think about

the last twenty years- the process of growth and the efforts to diversify our economy which
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Senate Industry, Business and Labor Commiittee
Bill/Resolution Number SB2032

Hearing Date January 10, 2001,

produced results in the 1990s; 2) Think between now and 2010 and the tools put in place, how to
become better and smarter to elevate the process of growth in the

state; 3) Tax base growth,

Miles Friedman, President, National Association of State Development Agencies (NASDA),
written testimony attached.

Senator Mutch: Is NASDA a private or public organization?

M. Friedman: Private nonprofit.

Senator Mathern: Will the Dept of Labor and Job Services be added to the Comimerce
Department?

M. Friedman: At this point we are trying to get the basic structure in place and then looking
forward to filling the details, workforce development is an issue that will be explored.

Senator Mathern: Other agencies will possibly be added to this department?

M. Friedman: One of the important things of this bills is that there is flexibility to allow us to
provide the setvices needed, Rep.

Elfot Glasshelm, Chairman, Interim IBL Committee, Consider the bill in the context of
population decrease, per capita income not increasing; without action in economic development
it would worsen, Increased state commitment to economic development involves focusing
resources, setting up structures, assurances, or projects or programs that would give confidence
to investors and legislators that additional resources are needed to promote economic
development, There is support for additional resources for economic development, there is some
disagreement on how to get there, concern about centralization. There is substantial agreement on

having a central cabinet, on economic develdpment privatization (Economic Development

Private Sector Foundation), skepticism about unified economic development budget, about size
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Senate Industry, Pusiness and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB2032

Hearing Date January 10, 2001,

of organization (efficiency). There was little testimony that current system is not working. We
need to expand resources and to bring private sector in. There are questions as to which agencies
should be involved (banking, finance, insurance?). I don’t think the Bank of North Dakota should
be involved.

Senator Tollefson: There has been an adversarial position between state ED&F and local
developers. How will this work better at the local level?

Rep. Glassheim: There is nothing in the bill that will tell you one way or another, Concern
about community development package going into this centralized organization. Question is
whether a centralized agency will be more helpful to urban areas than to rural ones.

Senator Tollefson :How cooperation will take place, private sector should have bigger role than
public sector, how do you attract capital?

Rep. Glasshelm: There are other bills that will address that, trying to encourage North Dakota
money to invest in North Dakota,

Jennifer Clark, Legislative Council, neither for nor against the bill, explained substance of the
bill, Bulk of the bill is found in pages 32 to 35.

Senator Mathern : In page 8, “director of commerce”, is it the same as “commissioner’?

J. Clark: My assumption is that under your department you got your commissioner and
underneath that, the division director, there will be a di~cctor for the ED&F division. Rulemaking
authority is transferred to the department. Corporate Board is advisoty.

Senator Kleln : Governor will still appoint directors.

J. Clark: Appointments will be made by the commerce commissioner appointed by the

governor. Commissioner’s duties are spelled out in page 33 line 8 forward. The North Dakota

Developmen: Foundation will be comprised of 15 to 30 members appointed by govemor, their
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Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB2032

Hearing Date January 10, 2001.

role is advisory and to set accountability measures, there is no enforcement mechanism in there.
Commerce Cabinet: pages 34-35. Page 40 (lines 8-12), appropriation clause, there may be
transition issues that may need to be worked out. Cabinet is comprised of state agency heads and
the foundation of the private sector.

Jack Dairymple, Lieutenant Governor, Governor Hoeven favors this bill. Real reason for
combining agencies: synergy resulting from people working together in common effort, Base
program of tourism will not be diminished, consolidation will bring more resoutces to theni.
Initial consolidation proposal will show approximately 4 administrative position savings, beyond
that would be up to legislature. Rural vs. urban notiiing in this bill will change what we have
now. Needed at state level: more resources, more development dollars, investment tax credit to
stimulate investment activity, not more bureaucracy, the rest of the structure is there,

Jim Melland, Vice-president Economic Development Association of North Dakota. In favor of
bill. Written testimeny attached.

Tracy Potter, President and Executive Director, Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation, speaking as
a private citizen, Written testimony attached, In favor of bill. Envisions conflict between agency
and Tourism, economic developers have different focus, tourism foses seat at governor’s cabinet,
conflicts in tourism promotion.

Senator Mathern: Concern with Commerce Commissioner position being almost autonomous, a
lot of power. Intent is important but how it plays out in rule making may turn out completely

different.

Terri Thiel, Executive Director, Dickinson Convention and Visitors Bureau, President ND

Association of Convention and Visitors Bureaus, No general consensus at this time for or against




Page 5

Senate Industry, Business and J.abor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB2032

Hearing Date January 10, 2001,

the bill, advantageous in being part of process but budget is a concern, also representation in
cabinet position. We still need to discuss it among ourselves,

Hearing concluded.

January 29, 2001, Tape 2-B- 7.5toend; 3-A-0t0 7.5

Committee reconvened. All members present. Proposed amendments and organizational chart
submitted by Senator Grindberg discussed.

Senator Kiein: Major changes page 32 “shall” was removed, inserted “may”. “Division of
international trade” was removed. International trade is outsourced and they would like to keep
it that way. The way the language is now, it would be an agency position. We want to make sure

tourism is inserted in page 34, line 11, Clarify what foundation will do, seck private funds.

Pagc 34, line 31, change to include department division directors in the cabinet. In page 35 we

are adding transportation, job service and game and fish, We want to make sure tourism and
ED&F are there. Eliminate restrictions on meetings in page 35, line 7.

Allan Stenehjem, Tourism Director; with this amendments tourism placed back in governors
cabinet, Will retain a voice and keep its identity, There is assurance our budget will be a separate
line item. These amendments came out because of the concerns of the CVBs, at their suggestion.
Senatai: Nvery: Page 34, line 10 add word geographical to insure small town representation o
something to that effect or “rural representation”,

Senator Klein: Include after word “cross section” add words “including rural”,

Move to accept Grindberg amendment, and the amendment to the amendment.

Senator Espegard seconded,

Roll call vote: 7 yes; 0 no. Motion carried. Discussion.

Senator Klein: Move do pass as amended. Senator Espegard: seconded.




Page6

~ Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
BillResolution Number SB2032

Hearlng Date January 10, 2001.

" Roll call vote: 3 yes; 4 no, Motion failed.

January 31, 2001, Tape 3-A-44.9 to 53.1

Discussion held. Amendment presented by Senator Klein discussed.

Senator Klein: Motion to adopt amendment. Senator Espegard: Seconded
Roll call vote: 7 yes; 0 no. Motion carried.
Senator Espegard: Motion: do pass as amended. Senator Toliefson: Seconded.

Roll call vote: 7 yes; 0 no. Motion carried. Fioor assignment : Senator Klein




FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legisiative Council

12/14/2000
Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2032
Amendment to:
1A, State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations
compared to funding levels and eppropriations antivipated under current law.

1999-2001 Biennium 2001-2003 Blennium 2003-2006 Biennium
General Fund | Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds |Generai Fund| Other Funds

‘Revenues
Expenditures
Appropriations

18. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision,

1999-2007 Biennium 2001-2003 Blennium "2003-2005 Biennium
School School School
Countlas Citler Districts Countles Cities Districts Counties Cities Distriots

2. Narrative: /dentify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal Impact and include any comments
relevant to your analysis,

No fiscal impact. This fiscal note assumes the expenditures for the Department of
Commerce are equal to the consolidated expenditures of the Department of Economic Deyv.,
& Finance, Division of Community Services and Dept. of Tourism, all of which are included
in the executive budget.

3. State fiscal effect detall: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts inciuded in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts, Provide detall, when appropriate, for each agency,
line item, and fund affected and the numbel of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the sppropriation amounts, Provide detall, when appropriate, of the effect on
the biennial appropriation for each agency and fund atfected and any amounts included in the executive
budget. | *icata the relationship between the amounts shown for expendftures and appropriations,
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10190.0202 Prepared by the Legisliative Council staff for
Title. ' Senator Grindberg
January 23, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2032

Page 26, line 23, overstrike "and"
Page 26, line 24, afier "2." insert *An international trade office: and
a;.

Page 32, line 8, overstrike "shall” and insert immediately thereafier "may”
Page 32, line 9, overstrike "shall" and Insert immediately thereafter *may"
Page 32, line 29, remove "A division of international trade:"

Page 32, line 30, remove "g,”

Page 32, line 31, replace “f" with "g"

Page 34, line 11, after "business” insert ", tourism,"
Page 34, line 14, replace "nina” with "saven"
Page 34, after line 15, ingert:

Page 34, line 16, replace "3" with “4" and replace "foundation" with “executive committee”
Page 34, line 19, replace "divisic

Page 34, line 21, after "Monitor” insert “fourism and”

Page 34, remove lines 24 through 26

Page 34&:90 31, after the first "the" insert "
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2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. X Q35

Senate Industry, Business and Labor

D Subcommitiee on
or

E‘ Conference Committee

Legisiative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken

Motion Made By . Seconded
zfm_[éﬂzl____ By

Senstors Senators
Senator Mutch - Chairman Senator Every
Senator Klein - Vice Chairman Senator Mathern
Senator Espegard
Senator Krebsbach
Senator Tollefson

Total (Yes) 7
Aent (O

Floor Assignment
lfmevotensonmunendman.bﬁe te intent:

1o mcddt»@fmﬂm C 277 MMW
/0 mw/'




. Date: //&Q/O

Roll Call Vote #: S~

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VYOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO,

Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee

D Subcommittee on
or
Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken &2, MMWM N

Motion Made By Z l:' ; Sccondcd 2 ‘ g :

Senﬂors Senators
Senator Mutch - Chairman Senator Every
Senator Klein - Vice Chairman Senator Mathem
Senator Espegard
Senator Krebsbach
Senator Tollefson

Total  (Yes) A No 4

Absent O

Floor Assignment

R . If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




10160.0203 Prepared by the Legisiative Council staff for
Title, Senator Klein
January 31, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2032

Page 33, line 1, replace "Each division director serves at the will” with "The governor she
BN | f1-KeiL-.8 .'n' N 'nmnm ATDUNUTULY 80TYVICOR '4mm.'
development and finance. and the divis| ‘ Each of these directors se

he pleasure of the governor and rece

Page 34, line 14, remove "§,"

Page 33, line 16, reptace "§" with "§"
Page 33, line 17, replace "7" with "g"
Page 33, line 19, replace "8" with *7"
Page 33, line 21, replace "9" with "§8"
Page 33, line 25, replace "10" with "9"
Page 33, line 27, replace "11" with "1Q0"

Page 34, line 3, replace "12" with "11"
Page 34, line 4, replace "13" with 12"
Renumber accordingly

10190.0203




, O Date: //3//0/

Roll Call Vote #: /

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. .20 35~

Senate Industry, Business and Labor

D Subcommittee on
or

D Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken WM&Z&MMM

Senstors No Senators
Senator Mutch - Chairman Senator Every
Senator Klein - Vice Chairman Senator Mathem
Senator
Senator Krebsbach
Senator Tollefson
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. Date; 113//0 / I'

Roll Call Vote #: 3.
2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO, =2 Q23 &,

Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee

D Subcommittee on
or

E] Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken &MM

Motion Made By Seconded ~N—T
By ’

Senators No Senators
Senator Mutch - Chairman Senator Every
Senator Klein - Vice Chairman Senator Mathern
Senator Espegard
‘Senator Krebsbach
Senator Tollefson

Total  (Yes) A
Absent @)

Floce Assignment gz /7047

If the\vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: 8R-18-2129

February 1, 2001 2:38 p.m. Carrier: Kiein
’ P insert L.C: 10190.0204 Title: .0300

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
8B 2032: Industry, Business and Labor Committes (Sen. Mutch, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS A8 FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2032 was placed on the Sixth

order on the calendar.
Page 26, Iine 23, overstrike "and"
Fage 26, line 24, after "2.” insert "An international trade office: and

3’

Page 32, line 8, overstrike "shall” and Insert immediately thereafter "may"
Page 32, line 9, overstrike "shall” and insert Inmediately thereafter "may”
Page 32, line 29, remove "A divislon of international trade:”
Page 32, line 30, remove "g,"
Page 32, line 31, replace “f" with "g"

Page 33, line 1, replace "Each dlvision director serves at the will" with "The governor ghall
appoint the directors of the division of community services, division of econom

Page 33, line 14, remove "5,

Page 33, line 16, replace "6" with "5"

Page 33, line 17, replace "7" with "g"

Page 33, line 19, replace "8" with "7"

Page 33, line 21, replace "9" with "8"

Page 33, line 25, replace "10" with "9"

Page 33, line 27, replace "11" with "10"

Page 34, line 3, replace "12" with "11"

Page 34, line 4, replace "13" with "12"

Page 34, line 11, after "business" insert *, toyrism.”
Page 34, line 12, after 'mgggm&n" ingert ", a

moesx.mm ; Page No. 1 SR18-2129




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: 8R-18-2129

February 1, 2001 2:38 p.m, Carrier: Kiein
insert LC: 10190,0204  Title: .0300

Page 34, line 14, replace "nine” with "seven”
Page 34, after line 16, insert:

Page 34, line 16, replace "3" with "4" and replace "foundation” with "executive committee”
Page 34, line 19, replace "division of economic development and finance's” with
"department'’s”

Page 34, line 21ymfier "Monitor" insert "tourism and”
Page 34, remauve lines 24 through 26
Page 3%99 31, after the first "the" insert "directors of each of the department divisions and of

Page 36, line 2 aﬂer the thlrd underscored comma insert mg_dgnamnmmﬂmumnmm
Page 35, line 5, after "development" insert "and tourlsm"

Page 36, line 7, replace "a minimum of four times and a maximum of twelve times each year”
with "at times determined by the commissloner”

Renumber accordingly

SR-18-2129
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200§ SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO, SB 2032

Senate Appropriations Committee

Q Conference Committee

Hearing Date February 13, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
i X 0.0-16.2
/\ i /7
7
Committee Clerk Signature [M’% 37““%_“/
4
Minutes:

Senator Nething opened the hearing on SB 2032,
Jennifer Clark, Legislative Council, stated she would answer any questions on the amendment
changes made by Industry, Business & Labor (I, B & L) Committee on the bill, Thisisa

structured fiscal impact only.

Representative Bruce Eckre, District #25, appeared in favor of the bill and the appropriation.
Carol Two Eagles, appeared in support of the bill to make a hub for native Americans on and off

the reservation. This is an economic impact for the Department ¢f Commerce.

Dale Anderson, GNDA, appeared in favor of the bill stating progress will be made with this bill

" anditis the right combination. GNDA is involved with new economy initiative, this is

technology for ND. This will be beneficial for the Department of Commerce.

Senator Nething: This bill is following the Economic, Development and Finance Budget,

o changes have been made by I, B & L Committee; did this cause any heartburn with you folks.
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Senate Appropriations Commiiteo
Bill/Resolution Number 8B 2032
Hearing Date February 13, 2001

DRale Anderson: This bill draft is dosirable; U, B & L gave an excellent combination and we
support the amondments,

Steve Egoland, EDND, spoke in favor of the bill. We have 100 membors ucross ND who
strongly favor this bill. It is good legislation access to the dopartments,

Scnator Grindberg: Please address the foundation part on page 34, Line 13-30),

Leo Peterson, Department of Commerce, responded, this is a private sector side of the bill for
funding of $100,000. The Department of Commerce works with three heads and other strategic
planning. This plan will raise over and above the initial investment,

Senator Andrist: There are 30 members and only | representing the rural arcas?

Lee Peterson: Rural arcas are never left out and there is real movement down the road.
Legislation from the interim I, B & L Committce. Open areas in rural representation and it is
strong with this committee,

Senator Thane: 40% of our state economy is in agticulture, is it really fair to only have one rural
representative in this area, this troubles me, please comnient,

Lee Peterson: There is one seat for the rural areas; more seats to be made for agriculture and
others, Need people for these committees to be successful, Businesses are the drivers in the
state,

Senator Tomac: On page 37 of the bill, what does continuing appropriation apply to and on page
32, ED & F, will this delete other agencies reports?

Lee Peterson: to the first question 1’m not sure on the continuing appropriation, second question,

the report by the Department of Commerce is for all the departments.

Sepator Nething: On the continuing appropriation, is this primarily for federal funds.
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Sonate Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2032
Hearing Dato February 13, 200}

Jennifer Clatk, Legislative Council, For exisiing commission services. The purpose is for

carrying out the Chapter 54-44.5 for continuing appropriation to the departments net the division,

Senator Robinson: My observation on page 40 with effective dates 8/01/01 for this new
department; this administrative date, emergency date?

Leo Petorson: We worked with departments and consulted with I, B & L on the date.
Senator Holmberg: 8/1/01 is the effetive date anyway: same with all bills.

Bill Schalbe, with Hospitality Association, spoke in favor of the bill and recommended a do
pass.

With no opposition the hearing was closed. Senator Nething atated this bill will go into

subcommittee with ED & F, Senator Grindberg, chair,

. Tape #1, Side A, 16,2

JI—— { s
February 16, 2001 Full Committee Action (Tape 1, Side A, Meter No, 39.9-43,7)
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Senator Nething reopened the hearing on SB2032,

T

o Discussion. Senator Grindberg moved a DO PASS; seconded by Senator Heitkamp, Call for the

Roll Call Vote: 13 yes; 0 no; 1 absent and not voting. Floor assignment back to Senator Klein,

T T RN AP e T

original carrier.
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Date: f”"?"'/ <2/
Roll Call Vote #:

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO, % /5.2 52,

Senave Appropristions Committee

D Subcommittee on
or

D Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken % M@
Motion Made By / PR Secondecié /@
Sl \/é//»«ez./, By / 7 /é;’w.;go

Senators

Dave Nething, Chairman
Ken Solberg, Vice-Chairman
Randy A. Schobinger
Elroy N, Lindaas
Harvey Tallackson

J, Robinson
Steven W, Tomac
Joel C. Heitkam
Tony Grindber
Russell T. Thane
Ed Kringstad
Ray Holmberg
Bill Bowman
John M. Andrist

No Senators Yes | No

YIS Y Y NE

Total Yes / :

Absent /
Floor Assignment W

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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7 -REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-29-3643
. Februmry 16,2001 11:38 a.m. ' Carrier: Kloin
o TR R insertLC:. Titie: .
T , REPORT OF STANDINC. C:OMMITTEE

- 8B2032, as engrossed: ropriations Committee (Sen. Nomlnﬁ. Chairman)

reconnimends DO PA (13 YEAS, ONAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed SB 2032 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.
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2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2032

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Q Conference Committee

Hearing Date March 13, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
1 X 0-42.1

Committee Clerk Signature \%@7

Minutes: Chairman R. Berg, Vice-ChW, Rep. M. Ekstrom, Rep. R. Froelich, Rep. G.

Froseth, Rep. R. Jensen, Rep. N, Johnson, Rep. J. Kasper, Rep. M. Klein, Rep. Koppang,

Rep. D. Lemieux, Rep. B. Pietsch, Rep. D. Ruby, Rep. D. Severson, Rep. E. Thorpe.

Jennifer Clark: Commerce and Labor Committee This bill creates the commerce department,

cabinet, and ND economic development foundation. This bill provides the definitions, divisions,

duties, and committee members,

i

Lee Peterson: ED&F director Explained organization of the setup of the Dept. of Commerce.
b This allows for a foundation for money and this is also by private industry. The cabinet

coordinates the Issues to get them in action faster. The Governor now would appoint the heads.

I'd like to move it back to the Commissioner, The heads of the departments would be

unclassified.

Ren. Ekstrom: How does marketing fit in?




.~ House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2032
- Hearing Date March 13, 2001

| m We have a two-year plan to do trade-shows, media, and so forth and we hope to bring

in more tourism,
Rep. Pietsch: Is there a limit on how long each position can be served.
Peterson: No but it is likely to change with the change of the Governor.

Chairman Berg: What are your staff plans?

Petetson: They would come out of the administrative groups.
Rep. Jensen: Who is likely to give money?

Peterson: Private industries will invest,

‘Rep, Ekstrom: How will you address a ‘turf building’ question?

Peterson: There is going to be less turf and I feel the issue is already very small.

Steve Egeland: (33.2) Economic Developer We support this bill because it creates a focal point

for everyone.

Bill Shalhoob: ND Hospitality Assoc. We support this bill and feel that tourism is important to be

appointed by the Governor. There are marketing synergies there.

Chairman Berg: How will this benefit tourism?
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House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
‘Bill/Resolution Number SB 2032

. Hearing Date March 13, 2001

Shalhoob: Marketing synergies to create traffic in ND and this may be streamlined to create more

dollars,

Chairman Berg: We’ll close the hearing on SB 2032,




2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2032(B)
House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Q Conference Committee

Hearing Date March 20, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #

X 0-49.7

X 47.2-58.5

X 9.1-17.6

1
2
Committee Clerk Signature m DB’

Minutes; Chairman R. Berg, Vice-ChairM. M. Ekstrom, Rep. R. Froelich, Rep. G.
Froseth, Rep. R. Jensen, Rep. N. Johnson, Rep. J. Kasper, Rep. M. Klein, Rep. Koppang,

Rep. D. Lemieux, Rep. B, Pietsch, Rep. D. Ruby, Rep. D. Severson, Rep. E. Thotpe.
Chairman Betg; Provided and explained amendments for biil.

Yice-Chair Keiser: Why not add hospitality and tourism?

Chairman Berg: I just had the core things in mind as I drafted thisg

Rep Kasper: “including average annual wage”.

Chairman Berg: That doesn’t generally include ag,

Rep Thorpe: I move the amendment,

Rep Koppang: I second.

Vice-Chair Keiser: Primary sector jobs are well defined in this bill and tourism isn’t included.

Rep Thorpe: 1 withdraw my motion.




\utioo Number SB 2032(B)
ing M_Mmh 20,2001
m This bill evolved in the Interim Committee, We felt that tourism seems to be

"au@iﬁa‘ﬁédly‘:involved in economic development,

| | Xm&hﬂr_&qj& 1 dppose adding tourism to this bill,

Rep Kasper: Primary sector jobs are good but they’re quite a few businesses that are economic
developments not falling in as a primary sector.

thmmnm Primary sector is making a product and creating money from out of state
consumers.

Rep Pietsch: I think tourism is an export industry because outside consumers are spending their
money here,

Rep Severson: Tourism seems to be a part of our commerce.

Rep Thorpe: I think tourism would be a much smaller entity if it wasn't included,

Vice-Chair Keiser: Where are the dollars coming from? Tourism money would come out of
other places at others’ expense. This could take money from a new business to fund a part-time
(summer) industry.,

Rep M. Klein: (35.8) We need to move in a direction to get this moving and work on it over time
to see what works and what won’t,

Rep Ekstrom: I agree, we can tweak it as we go.

Rep Koppang: A promotion of tourism is a promotion to get new businesses to come in.

" Rep Froseth: Adding tourism won't hurt the mission.

mxm This doesn't talk about technology or other “now” industries.

Rep Ruby: Idon't think anyone would ignore that,

Bm.ﬁmcm Anything goes as far as expanding businesses,
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House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2032(B)

Hearing Date March 20, 2001

Rep Pictsch: Any product that has most of it’s consumers from out of state counts.

Jennifer Clark: (T1B 47.2) Legislative Council Explained amendments and offered to review

state boards listed. Prepared some of the amendments needed, 10190.0302.
Clark: (T2B 9.1) Provided and explained amendments .0303,
Yice-Chairman Keiser: I move the amendments.

Rep M., Klein: I second.

Rep Froseth: I move a do pass as amended.

Rep Lemieux: Second.

e

12 yea, 1 nay, 2 absent  Carrier Chairman- Rick Berg




10190.0301 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Berg
March 20, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2032

Page 1, line 17, after the first semicolon insert "to provide tor correction of statutory
references;"

Page 28, line 3, after the semicolon insert "and”

Page 28, line 4, overstrike "Report at least annually tc 2/ interim committee designatad by the
legislative”

Page 28, line 5, overstrike "council on performance of all divisions of the", remove "division®,
and overstrike “of economic”

Page 28, overstrike line 6

Page 28, line 7, overstrike "satisfaction the", remove "division", and overstrike "of economic
development and finance has in"

Page 28, overstrike lines 8 through 11
Page 28, line 12, overstrike "9."

Page 33, replace lines 3 through 11 with:
"2,  The commissioner shal nt the dir f the division of communit

services, divislon of economic development and finance, division of
workforce developmerit, and any divi ted by the commissioner

under subsection 1. Effective August 1, 2005, the commissioner shall also
appoint the director of the division of tourlsm. Each director serves at the
pleasure of the commissioner and is entitled to receive a salary set by the
commissioner within the limits of legisiative appropriation.  Until August 1,
2005, the governor shall appoint the director of the division of tourism, who

mﬁm%or and is entitled to receive a
salary set by the governor withi ts of legislative appropriation.”

Page 34, line 7, replace "on” with *;
a On
Page 34, line 8, replace ", on" with *;
. On
Page 34, line 9, replace ", on" with *;
¢ Qn'
Page 34, line 10, replace *,and summarizing" with *;

Page No. 1 10190.0301




| d on
Page 34, line 11, after the underscored semicolon insert "and

ive of agriculture, and the number

. 3 . e. Oncommerce benchmarks, ingluclﬁng the average annual wage in the (
- r ate pr X ,

Page 40, after line 21, insert:

"SECTION 56. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL CORRECTION OF STATUTORY
REFERENCES. The legislative council may replace references to the "department of
economic development and finance”, "division of community services”, "tourism
department”, and “depariment of economic development and finance division of
finance" with references to the "department of commerce division of economic
development and f'nance”, departiment of commerce division of community services”,
“department of commerce division of tourlsm", "department of commerce division of
economic development and finance finance office”, "department of commerce®, and
“commissioner of commerce"”, or any variation of these terms as appropriate, in any
measure enacted by the fifty-seventh legislative assembly.”

Renumber accordingly

10180.0301




10190.0302 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative N. Johnson
March 20, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2032

Page 26, line 30, remove "Director” and overstrike "~ Appointment” and insert immediately
thereafter “Director”

Page 26, line 31, averstrike "The" and remove "commissioner of"

Page 27, line 1, remove “"commerce” and overstrike "shall appoint as director a person who is
qualified by training, knowledge, and"

Page 27, overstrike lines 2 and 3

Page 27, line 4, overstrike "of the", remove the first "commissioner”, overstrike "and shall
receive a salary set by the", and remove the second "commissioner"

Page 27, line 5, overstrike "within the limits of legislative appropriations.”

Page 30, line 17, overstrike “1.”

Page 30, line 21, overstrike "2. The", remove "¢commissioner of commerce"”, overstrike "shall
appoint a director of the", and remove "division of”

Page 30, line 22, overstrike "tourism", oversttike "who shall serve at the will of the", remove
" *. and overstrike the perlod

Renumber accordingly

10190.0302
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Rep. Roxanne Jensen
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: HR-51-6531

March 23, 2001 11:37 a.m. Carrier: Berg
insert LC: 10190.0303 Title: .0400

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2032, as engrossed: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg,
Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended,
recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1NAY, 2ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed SB 2032 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 17, after the first semicolon insert “to provide for correction of statutory
references;”

Page 26, line 30, remove "Director” and overstrike "- Appeintment” and insert immediately
thereatter "Director”

Page 26, line 31, overstrike "The" and remove "commissioner of"

Page 27, line 1, remove "commerce” and overstrike "shall appoint as director a person who Is
qualified by training, knowledge, and"

Page 27, overstrike line.s 2 and 3

Page 27, line 4, overstrike "of the", remove the first "commissionet”, overstrike "and shall
receive a salary set by the", and remove the second "commisgioner”

Page 27, line 5, overstrike "within the limits of legislative appropriations.”

Page 28, line 3, after the semicolon insert "and”

Page 2?. ll‘nle ?, overstrike "Report at least annually to an interim committee deslgnated by the
egisiative"

Page 28, line 5, overstrike “council on performance of ali divisions of the", remove "divigion",
and overstrike "of economic”

Page 28, overstrike iine 6

Page 28, line 7, oversirike "satisfaction the", remove "division®, and overstrike “of economic
development and finance has in"

Page 28, overstrike lines 8 through 11
Page 28, line 12, overstrike "9."

Page 30, line 17, overstrike "1."

Page 30, line 21, overstrike "2, The", remove "commissioner of commerce", overstrike "shall
appoint a director of the", and remove "divigion of*

Page 30, line 22, overstrike "tourism”, cverstrike "who shall serve at the will of the”, remove
" ", and overstrike the period

Page 33, replace lines 3 through 11 with:

"
2 [he commissioner shall appoint the directors of the givision Of commuint

:
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REPORT OF 8T ANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: HR-51-6531

Mearch 23, 2001 11:37 a.m. Carrier: Berg
insert LC: 10190.0303 Title: .0400

Page 34, fine 7, replace "on" with ";
a On
Page 34, line 8, replace ", on” with "
b. On
Page 34, line 9, replace ", on" with ";
¢c. On
Page 34, line 10, replace ", and summarizing” with ";
d Oon'
Page 34, line 11, after the underscored semicolon insert "and

e Qngm_tnhm:_gg hemmummmww.m@mi
_state product_excluslve of agriculture. and
number o orlmmmmmmn_mmm.

Page 38, line §, overstrike "hereby”
Page 38, line 8, overstrike "which" and insert immediately thereafter "that"

Page 38, line 8, overstrike "and it" and insert immediately thereafter ",__The councll® and
overstrike the second "shall”

Page a?, "nr? 9, oversirike "consist” and insert immediately thereafter "consists" and at‘terf “of"
nsert “a traffic counsel selected by the mgmbm_aﬁb ii,.a representative of the

rallways serving the state who Is selected by the counell, and"

Page 39. line 14, overstrike "!ivestock lndq.stry council® and insert immediately thereafter

5

Page 38, line 15, after "Dakota” insert "state"

Page 38, line 18, overstrike “farmers”

Page 38, line 19, overatrike "The North Dakota railway lines.”

Page 38, line 20, overstrike "10.”

Page 38, line 21, overstrike *11." and insert iInmediately thereatter "10,"
Page 38, overstrike lines 22 and 23

Page 40, after line 21, insert:

“QECTION. 88. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. CORRECTION OF STATUTORY
REFERENCES. The legislative council may replace references v the "depastment of

PIOONO 2 % mum
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Module Ne: HR-8§1-6831
Coarrier: m
insert LC: 10190.0303 Title:

‘ocommissionsr of commerce®, or any variation of these terms as sppropriate, n any
measure enacted by the fifty- -seventh loob!a&vomomb!y

Renumber accordingly
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2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2032
House Appropriations Committee

Q Conference Committee

Hearing Date March 30, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
03-30-01 tape #| 1649 - 3105
/m /
Committee Clerk Signature 4@%{ '(2(/__“4,
Minutes:

The committee was called to order, and opened the hearing on SB 2032,

Chairman Timm: SB 2032 was referred to our committee and it relates to the department
of commerce. It came from the IBL committee and they sent it out with a Do Pass and rereferred
it to us,

Rep. Martinson: Handed out amendments. Wants to keep his remarks brief, and
although the amendments are 4 pages long, they are simple. They remove Tourism from the
proposed Economic Development Department. He requests a recorded vote. If he doesn't win,
he would request a minority vote. He gives statistics: from 1990 to 1998 agriculture grew 1/10
of 1%, manufacturing grew 61%, coal grew 7.3%, oil decreased 12.7%, and tourism grew 517%.
From 1998 to 1999 tourism grew 35.5%. Tourism represents 30% of the ND economy. Thinks

its too important and too good for us to merge it into another department. Moves amendment

10190.0304, Seconded by Rep. Carlisle.
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House Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number 8B 2032
Hearing Date March 30, 2001

Rep. Skarphol: Looking at the third page of the amendment, what does page 38, lino 9

do?
Rep. Martinson: Does not know, He asked the LC to write an amendment that would

remove Tourism from the proposed dopartment of commerce, Explains that this is an

amendment to the engrossed bill,

Rep. Kempenich: Explains how he sces the wording, as a shift of where they were.

Jim Smith, LC: Because these are in licu of amendments, they also include what was
done by the House IBL committee. This amendment consolidates what was done in 1BL and
what was requested of Rep. Martinson, and may not directly relate to tourism,

Rep. Skarphol: Cannot resist saying this, and feels that tourism has done such a good job
in this state, and they need to help the economic development department,

Rep. Glassheim: Rep. Martinson do you know what is composed in your statistics, what
are we counting as part of tourism, are we counting every burger sold, every hotel spending,
every gallon of gas sold? Some of this is not really as a result of the tourism industry.

Rep. Martinson: These statistics were gathered by NDSU, department of ag economics,
and has a data shect he could provide. They would count all of that, he believes.

Rep. Koppelman: Comments that the commerce bill has not passed out of this committee
yet, but the subcommittee did make some effort to protect tourism in the budget bill. We have
tried to protect the dollars earmarked for tourism, if it does indeed become part of the department
of commerce.

,C_tmggm_’[m Representative Martinson has requested a recorded roll call vote, and a
minority report. (laughter at that ) Okay, either a majority or minority report, we'll find out.

Roll call vote, 9 yes, 12 no, 0 absent and not voting. Motion fails.
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House Appropristions Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2032
Hearing Date March 30, 2001

Chaiman Timm: Motion fails, 9 to 12,

Rep. Mastinson: Requests the minority report,

(Some discussion as to minority report options, and Jim Smith from LC gives some
direction),

Rep. Byerly: Moves DO PASS, Seconded by Rep. Koppelman,

Rep. Kerzman: Asks for counsel/directions from Jim Smith of LC, as to the minority
report, and where the amendment from the House 1BL committee stands,

Jim Stith: States tha: the House had already voted on them, and we will be back to the
bill with those amendments,

Vote on Do Pass ; 20 yes, | no, 0 absent and not voting, Motion passes.

Rep. Wamer: Asks about how the minority report, amendment is to be carried to the

floor.
Rep. Glassheim: Asks for clarification of carrying the minority report to the floor.

Rep. Timm is assigned to carry this bill to the floor.




10190.0304 Prepared by the Legisiative Council stat! for
Tie. Representative Martinson
March 27, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2032

in lieu of the amendments to Senate Bill No. 2032 as printed on pages 1074 through 1076 of
the House Journal, Engrossed Senate Biil No. 2032 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 5, after the sixth comma insert “and” and remove "and"
Page 1, line 6, remove "24-03-21 "

Page 1, line 10, after the seventh comma insert “and"

Page 1, line 11, remove “54-34.4-01, 54-34.4-02, and 54-34.4-04,"

Page 1, sl!lng 91 g. zaggr the first comma insert "and” and remove ", and subsection 6 of section

Page 1, line 14, replace the second comma with "and"
Page 1, line 16, remove ", and tourism department”

Page 1, line 17, after the first semicolon insert "to provide for correction of statutory
references;"

Page 9, remove lines 12 through 18

Page 26, line 30, remove "Director" and overstrike "= Appointment" and insert immediately
thereafter "Director”

Page 26, line 31, overstrike "The" and remove "commissioner of”

Page 27, line 1, remove “"gommercg” and overstrike "shall appoint as director a person who is
qualified by training, knowledge, and”

Page 27, overstrike lines 2 and 3

Page 27, line 4, overstrike "of the", remove the first "commissioner”, overstrike "and shall
receive a salary set by the", ard remove the second “commissioner”

Page 27, line 5, overstrike "within the limits of legislative appropriations.”

Page 28, line 3, after the semicolon insert "and"

Page 28, li{;le 46. overstrike "Report at least annually to an interim commitiee designated by the
legislative”

PageNo. 1 10190.0304




Page 20. line 8. overeirike "counch on performance of all divisions of the"., re " i
and overstrike "ol economic® Pe move “division”,

Page 28, oversirike line 6

Page 28, line 7, overstrike “satisfaction the”, remove “diyision", and overstrike “of economic
devolopment and finance has in"

Page 28, overstrike lines 8 through 11
Page 28, line 12, overstrike "9."

Page 30, remove lines 14 through 30

Page 31, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 32, remove lines 1 through 14
Page 32, line 24, replace the first underscored comma with "and" and remove *,_and the
depariment of tourism"

Page 32, line 29, remove "A divislon of tourigm:"
Page 32, line 30, remove "d."

Page 33, line 1, replace "g" with "d"
Page 33, replace lines 3 through 11 with:

‘2. Ih mi I ion of nit

gervices, division of @ .mm&mnmﬂmiﬂnmﬁjvg_g_g{l n
&Mﬁg&m&mjmm&&g_m&m_ugmﬁgi loner

under subsection 1, Each grggxg r serves at the pleasure of the

commissioner and Is entitied ive a sal he commissioner

within the limits of legislativ r riation.”

Page 34, line 7, replace "on" with ”;
a On

Page 34, line 8, replace ", on" with ";
b. On

Page 34, line 9, replace ", on" with *;

¢c. On
Page 34, line 10, replace ", and summarizing" with *;

Page No. 2 10190.0304
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Page 34. line 11, after the underscored semicolon insert "ang

e On commerce benchmarks, including the average annual wage in the
giate, the grose state produyct exclusive of agriculture, and the number
of primary sector jobs in the state;"

Page 34, line 20. remove ", lourism,”

Page 35, line 3. remove “fourism angd"
Page 35, line 17, remove "and tourlsm"

Page 38, line 5, overglrike "hereby"
Page 38, line 6, overstrike "which" and insert immediately thereafter "that"

Page 38, line 8, overstrike "and it" and insert Immediately thereafter *,_The ¢council" and
overstrike the second "shall”

Page 38, line 9, overstrike "consist" and insert immediately thereafter "consisis" and after "of"
Insert “a trafflc counsel gelected by the members of the council, a representative of the
rallways serying the state who is selected by the council, and

Page 38, line 14, overstrike "livestock Industry council” and insert immediately thereafter "North

Dakota stockmen's agsoclation”
Page 38, line 15, atte( "Dakota" Ingert "state"
Page 38, line 18, overstrike "farmers”
Page 38, line 19, overstrike "The North Dakota railway lines."

Page 38, line 20, overstrike "10."

Page 38, line 21, overstrike "11." and inserl immediately thereafter "10."

Page 38, overstrike lines 22 and 23

Page 40, remove lines 15 through 15

Page 40, after line 21, insert:

“SECTION 51. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL CORRECTION OF STATUTORY
REFERENCES. The legistative council may replace references to the "department of
aconomic development and finance", "division of community services”, and "department
of economic development and finance division of finance” with references to the
"department of commerce division of economic development and finance”, department
of commerce division of community services”, "department of commerce divislon of
economic development and finance finance office”, "department of commerce”, and
“commissioner of commerce®, or any variation of these terms as appropriate, in any
measure enacted by the fifty-seventh legislative assembly.”

Page No. 3 10190.0304




Page 40, line 23, replace the first comma with “and” arkd remove *, and”
Page 40, line 24, remove "tourism department”
Renumber accordingly
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2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO, §B 2032
Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee

d Conference Committee

Hearing Date April 19, 2001,

Tape Number Side A
| X

(4/20) 1

X
Committee Clerk Signature @C‘Uﬁ é%

Minutes:

Committee was called to order, Present: Senator Muich, Senator Tollefson, Senator Every,
Representative Berg; Representative Keiser and Representative Lemieux.

Senator Mutch: We thought the bill was sent to the House in good shape. Please explain what
needs to be worked on, You want the Commissioner to appoint all division heads except the
Tourism Department which will be a four year appointment made by the Governor,

Rep, Keiser: The other depariments are truly departments of government. Tourism is a cabinet
level position which the others are not. We had a lot of debate on the House about whether
Tourism should be spawned out of this bill, if there was some risk in losing Tourism by moving
it into this larger organization, some of its power and contact with the governor would be lost. A
compromise was reached to make the transition, As the bill is, it will be a semi-cabinet position
for four years and the governor will appoint the director. Rather than removing it completely

there will be an interim step. This will give a chance to work everything out, In that time, if




Page 2

Senate Indusiry, Business and Labor Commitice
BilVResolution Number 8B 2032

Heariag Dato April 19, 2001,

everything works well, Tourism will b transitioned Into the Commerce Department, if not (and

there was » lot of concern In the House about that) it can be moved back out without 100 much
disruption. That is my interpretation.

Rep. Berg: My concern was more fiom the long term structure standpoint. If you have a person
appointed by someone else working for you, it creates a convoluted chain of command.
Obviously the Commis .acr {s going to appoint people the Governor wants,

Senator Mutch: Could the Governor "un-appoint" them?

Rep, Kelser: I think he could, Concem is imposing heads of departments on Commissioner, |
cannot think of an organization in which you hire a supervisor or manager and tell them
somebody else will select the heads of the departments

Rep. Berg: Long term one of the problems in ED&F is a lot of turnover in those top positions,
Part of the direction in this whole effort is to get more stability, Maybe these positions will
attract career people instead of governor appointees, They may still be removed but they may
carry over from one administration to the other.

Senator Mutch: That may be wishful thinking you are dealing with a political body not with a
business situation,

Senator Tollefson: We discussed that at length, the feeling is that it is political regardless of how
you cut it. The people elect the governor, governor makes those appointments. This is a brand
new area, a brand new concept. You have to gain the confidence of the people in these first four
years, hopefully, That is why I felt it is important that the governor become directly involved
with the appointment of those commissioners at least for the first four years.

Rep Berg: If someone needs to be replaced it will be easier for the director than for the governor.

Discussion held,
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Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2032

Hearing Date April 19, 2001,

Senator Tollefson: This is experimental, we don't know how it will work. The fear of some
people is that industry will have to stop at the state house rather than in Fargo or Bismarck to
receive what they think is particular attention for them,

Rep Berg: I certainly agree. I don't think governor can avoid accountability however the
department is set. I think, long term, it should be the governor appointing the Commissioner and
him appointing the others.

Rep. Keiser: I strongly support Rep. Berg's argument that we come back in two years and we
tweak and refine this bill, No matter how we call it, this is a government department, we need the
commissioner to have authority and responsibility to appoint others. Ultimately the governor will

be accountable, This is a legislative initiative that both candidates endorsed.

- Rep Berg: I want to reiterate that this evolved from a study resolution from last session focused

on how to do better economic development, We had national resource people put this package
together. One of the problems was the continuous shift of focus or maybe the lack of focus on
what we are trying to achieve with economic development. We are missing some of the core stuff
but one of the problems was having key people be political appointees and not economic
development professionals, Balancing act the committee had was how to continue to give the
governor control and at the same time allow some people to make a career on long term
economic development and give consistency to those efforts. That was one of the reasons why
we tried to remove the governor appointing some of these key people. I have no problem with the
governor making those appointmerts right now, because I think that is what is going to happen
anyhow. However if we are locking long term we should at least have those things sunset so that

as least people see where we are: going . If there is a big concern raised in the future we are going

to have other legislative sessions to deal with it.
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Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2032

Hearing Date April 19, 2001,

Senator Tollefson: I believe the sunset for the whole structure should be four years, that would

be acceptable for most people.

Rep. Lemieux: Compromise might be to leave Tourism sunset at four and the others at two. We
are going to be back in two years and work at it again.

Senator Tollefson: | am thinking in terms of Hoeven's term. He is appointing the commission.
In four years if he is not back you will see new commission, The ripple effect and the political
effect into those other appointments will be there too.

Rep Lemieux: You should not wait four years to transition because should there be a different
governor you go back to square one on everything. The transition should take place within this
term so that it can be managed by the same governor,

Rep Berg: There are other amendments | would like to propose. One of the issues with cconomic
development is the perception in the rest oi'the country about our tax rate.

Rep Keiser: We talked about de coupling and other things. In discussions with the Tax

Commissioner we looked for way to make this simpler. Asked him if when we disclose the tax
rate we disclose an effective rate instead of saying it is 14%. It would disclose it at two or five
percent or whatever the rate is in terms of publishing, it would be a percentage of the gross, This
simply deals with economic development and not actual rate itself but the effective rate, We will
have some additional amendments, Currently reported tax rate is based on the long form atid the
| long form has a variable rate that gets complicated and is higher, Perhaps it is more appropriate
to say that our official reporting rate will be based on the short form which is lower and

completely standardized. We are going to add this to the amendment so that we will not only

repott the effective rate but use the short form as the basis for the rate, not the long form as w
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Bill/Resolution Number SB 2032

Hearing Date April 19, 2001.

are currently doing. Other states are doing the same thing, putting their best foot forward. That

will be very beneficial for economic development.
Rick Clayburgh, Tax Commissioner. We did a quick review to make sure it would not create
any problems. We don't believe it will create any constitutionat or administrative problems, We

will work with John Bjorson from the Legislative Council to fix this amendment.

Discussion held.
Senator Mutch: All in agreement we should proceed with the amendment.

Rep Berg: This commerce deal has 3 different legs: Commerce Dept. with Workforce and
Tourism on it; the cabinet which would include Higher Ed and DOT and everyone coming
together to coordinate; the third leg is the Foundation. Foundation will be a public/private
partnership, the nucleus that will drive the department and puts together strategic plan, This is in
harmony with what the governor is thinking, there is an appropriation of 100 thousand for
foundation to develop strategic planning .Two roles of Foundation: 1. strategic planning and 2.
will hold economic development effort to some measure of accountability. Intention of the
amendment is to clarify the role of the foundation, that is why sections ¢ (strategic plan and
accountability standards.) and d are added. The other issue relates to agriculture, There has been
a wall between economic development and agricultural production. Value added agricultural
industries have been pushed over. As we look at strategic planning, foundation should also
consider value added agriculture as area where revenues and jobs can be increased,

Senator Tollefson: I agree there has been a wall between agriculture and economic

development. Agriculture is such a major part of industry in ND that it should be working

togethor with economic development,
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Senator Mutch: What are the wished of the committee? Any problems with this language
change and the proposed amendment?

Rep Berg: Version 400, Page 34, lines 6 to 8 that was one of the amendments put on the House
and talks about three key bench marks: average annual wage, gross state product; and number of
primary sector jobs, Those arc measurements to look at to see if we are improving or not. My
question was to make sure it goes into the right version of the bill.

Senator Tollefson: General public looks for accountability of where the money is going,.

Rep Kelser: This amendments clarify definition of accountability and make clear we expect
accountability,

Rep Berg: This are clear and measurable benchmarks.

Discussion held.

Senator Mutch distributed copies of amendment 10190,0306 which returns bill to original form
and puts all employees out of central personnel and whole department on the same footing as
ED&F which is out of job classifications.

Discussion on why amendments don't correspond with engrossed version of the bill. Legislative
Council prefers conference committee recede from all amendments in second house and amend
engrossed bill,

Rick Berg: Now we are bringing departments classified under central personnel in with ED&F
which is not, blending employees that have different systems. Options would be to take all out of
central personnel or include all.

Senator Mutch: To make adjustments in the number of employees it is easier if all not
classified, we have seen that in Worker's Comp.,

Rep Kelser: What do we gain by makiny all non classified?
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Rep Berg: I think termination of employment would be easier and also would give managers
flexibility to institute bonuses and incentives,

Rep Keiser: One way to depoliticize would be to have them classified, like in the tax department
where we have people with a lot of knowledge which cannot be terminated because of a change
in administration. Hopefully with this new department we will get some professionals in there. In
order to do that would we have to classify some positions or not? What we have done with
economic development is train people that leave.

Rep Berg: We are trying to put together a new department, we don't want to set up barriers at the
beginning that prevent putting the structure together.

Senator Tollefson: Classification revolves around tenure, Are there any other benefits?

Rep Keiser: Job security. If we look at number of people that have been trained and leave then
classification would be a good idea.

Senator Tollefson: You don't want to create a conflict between the classificd and non classified.
Maybe at the beginning all should be non classified and then work from there.

Rep Keiser: [ don't have a problem with that,

Senator Every: Certainly nobody would want to have to hire and train new people every four
years,

Senator Mutch: Are we ready for any particular decision or do we need to ponder this further?
Rep Lemieux: There were technical corrections made in the House that if we were to recede
from our amendments would need to be addressed. Page 38; line 12 "livestock industry council”

we replaced it with " ND Stockmen Assn." line 16; "ND grain dealers assn.” was replaced.

Rep. Berg: I can put all amendments together, The issue of concern: the appointments: one

alternative would be to let govemor appoint everyone and in two yeats let Commissioner appoint
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rest (Workforce, ED&F and Division of Community Services) and in four years Tourism would
transition. Would we want to declassify employees and transition them into classified? As Rep

Keiser says al} of this will be reviewed in two years.

Rep Kelser: I want to make it clear that our intent is to look at it in two years and see whether

some people will need to be classified.

Senator Tollefson: Then initially all employees should be unclassified.

Meeting adjourned.

April 20/01 Tape 1-A-0 to 1-A-14.4

Conference committee reconvened. All members present, Review and discussion of
amendments,

Rick Claybourgh, Tax Commissioner. By making the short form the main form and the long
form the optional form our reporting will be focused on the short form. The way you are stating
it we would be publishing ail information according to the short form based on the effective rate
of the short form interest. We have no problem with that. We would be listed like Vermont and
Rhode Island. If Congress changes the tax rate it will be a prorate switch, I think this is very
workable and addresses a lot of economic development concerns. Regarding page 5, subsection
2, all it does is renumerate that section of the code, it deals with exempt federal interest, there is
no wording in there regarding municipal interest which is being addressed in HB 1399,

Rep Lemieux: Only changes made to tax code are the technicai corrections underlined,
otherwise rest is in the statute,

Discussion held,

Rep Lemieux: In page two of the amendments regarding the tourism director, why was the

appointment date effective August of 2005?
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Rep Berg: That was what we had in the House, It will allow time for the new governor to

appoint someone,

Rep Keiser:I move that the House recede from its amendments and the adoption of these

amendments.

Senator Tollefson: Second,
Roll call vote : 6 yes; 0 no; 0 absent not voting. Motion carried. Floor assignment: Senator

Mutch,




10190.0306 Prepared by the Legislative Council staft for
Title. Senator Mutch
April 17, 2001

F;‘ROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2032

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1160-1162 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1074-1076 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2032
be amended as follows:

Page 35, line 29, remove "commerce division of” and overstrike "economic”

Page 35, line 30, overstrike "development and finance" and insert immediately thereafter
"commerce”

Renumber accordingly
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10190.0307 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title, ‘ Representative Berg
April 17, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2032

That the Senate accede to the House amendments as printed on pages 1160-1162 of the
Senate Journal and pages 1074-1076 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Ssnate BIll
No. 2032 be further amended as follows:

Page 34, line 29, replace "executive committee” with "foundation”

Page 35, line 1, replace ", Including counsel in the" with *;

¢. Develop a strategic plan for economic development in the state and
set accountabllity standards, measurements, and benchmarks to
evaluate the eff fth nt in impl ntin
strategic plan:

d. velop a strategic plan for | n lug-added
culture In the state: and”

Page 35, remove line 2

Page 35, line 3, replace "¢" with "g"

Page 35, line 4, replace "; and" with an underscored period
Page 35, remove line 5

Renumber accordingly

10190.0307




10190.0308 Prepared by the Legislative Council staft for
Title. Representative Berg
April 18, 2001

Fi’HOPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2032

That the Senate accede to the House amendments as printed on pages 1160-1162 of the
Senate Journal and pages 1074-1076 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill

No. 2032 be further amended as follows:
Page 1, line 12, remove "and” and after "55-06-01" insert *, and 57-38-54"

Page 1, line 16, after "commerce"” insert "and publication of statistics by the tax commissioner

Page 40, after line 3, insert:

"SECTION 52. AMENDMENT. Section 57-38-54 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-38-54. Publication of statistics. The tax commissioner shall prepare and
publish biennially statistics reasonably available with respect to the operation of this
chapter, including amounts collected, classification of taxpayers, and such other facts
as are deemed pertinent _;and valuable. issl ligh th mr

s Sé 38 A3 as a percentage 8 : 5 : gb uang
ange | on taxable

ed on

Renumber accordingly

Shos Fora
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10190.0309 : Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Berg
April 19, 2001

PROPOSED AMEMDMENNTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2032

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1160-1162 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1074-1076 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2032
be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, remove "and"

Page 1, line 5, remove "and”

Page 1, line 6, remove "and"

Page 1, line 1}, remove "and"

Page 1, line 12, remove "and" and after "55-06-01" insert ", §67-38-29, 57-38-30.3, 57-38-54"

Page 1, line 16, after "commerce” insert ", income tax filing methods for individuals, and
publication of statistics by the tax commissioner”

Page 1, line 17, after the first semicolon insert "to provide for correction of statutory
references;"

Page 26, line 30, remove "Directotr” and overstrike "= Appointment” and insert immediately
thereafter "Director”

Page 26, line 31, overstrike "The" and remove "commissioner of"

Page 27, line 1, remove "commerce” and overstrike "shall appoint as director & person who Is
qualified by training, knowledge, and"

Page 27, overstrike lines 2 and 3

Page 27, line 4, overstrike "of the", remove the first “commissioner”, overstrike "and shall
recelve a salary set by the”, and remove the second *commissioner”

Page 27, line B, overstrike “within the limits of legislative appropriations.”

Page 28, line 3, after the semicolon insert “and"

Page 2?. lllnle 3, overstrike "Report at least annually to an interim committee designated by the
oglislative”

Page 28, line 5, overstrike "council on per(ormance of all divisions of the", remove "divigion",
and overstrike "of economic”

Page 28, overstrike line 6
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Page 28, line 7, overstrike “satisfaction the", remove “division", and overstrike “of economic
developmem and finance has in”

Page 28, overstrike lines 8 through 11
Page 28, line 12, overstrike *9."

Page 30, line 17, overstrike "1."

Page 30, line 21, overstrike "2. The”, remove "commissioner of commerce”, overstrike "shall
appoint a director of the", and remove "division of"

Page 30, line 22, overstrike "tourism", overstrike "who shall serve at the will of the", remove
_c_gmmisgloge[ and overstrike the period

Page 33, replace lines 3 through 11 with:

“2,  YThe commissioner shall appoint the director of any division cre g!gg by the
mmmis&gm_uﬂmgub_sggﬂ_o_._E_ﬂ___J_uguecﬁv August 1, 2003, the

issloner shall appoint the directors of the division of commumgy

serv ceg‘_gﬂiﬂ_qn of economic development and finance, and division of

workforce development. Effective August 1, 2005, the commissioner shall
int the direct the division of tourism. Each director appointed by

the commissioner serves at the pleasure of the commissioner and is
entitled to receive a salary set by the commissioner within the limits of

legislative appropriation, Until August 1, 2003, the govergor shall appoint
the directors of the division of community services, division of economic

dggglgpmgng and ﬂngngg, and division gf ﬂgrglgrgg ggvglopmg‘nit gi nd_untif

]

MMMMMMMM
ary set by the

entill

MWMME&
governor within the limits of legislative appropriations.”

Page 34, line 7, replace "gn" with ";
a on”
Page 34, line 8, replace “, on" with ”;
b. Qn’
Page 34, line 9, replace ", on" with *;
¢ On
Page 34, line 10, replace ",_and summarizing" with ;
d. Qn"
Page 34, line 11, after the underscored semicolon insert "and
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Page 34, line 29, replace "executive committee” with "loundation”

Page 35, line 1, replace ", including counsel in the" with *;

¢. Develop a strategic plan for economic development in the state and
sel ?gcog?‘mb’!‘lty §‘tangard§'. measurements, and benchmarks 1o
evaluate the effectiveness of the department in implementing.
sirategic plan; the

Develop a strategic plan for the development of value-added
agriculture in the state; and”

d.

Page 35, remove line 2

Page 35, line 3, replace "¢" with "g"

Page 35, line 4, replace "; and" with an underscored period

Page 35, remove line 5

Page 35, line 29, remove "commerce division ¢f" and overstrike "economic”

Page 35, line 30, overstrike "development and finance” and insert immediately thereafter
"commerce”

Page 38, line 5, overstrike *hereby"
Page 38, line 6, overstrike "which” and insert immediately thereafter "fhat"

Page 38, line 8, overstrike "and it* and insert immediately thereafter ",_The council” and
overstrike the second "shall”

Page 38, line 9, overstrike "consist” and insert immediately thereafter "consists” and after "of*
insert "a traffl nsel selected by the memhers of the coun “u.grmmgﬂyg_gj_jm

rallways serving the state who Is selected by th

Page 38, line 14, overstrike "livestock industry councll” and Insert immediately thereafter "North
ssociation® .

Dakota stockmen's a
Page 38, line 15, after "Dakota” insert "state”

Page 38, line 18, overstrike "farmers”

Page 38, line 19, overstrike "The North Dakota rallway lines.”

Page 38, line 20, overstrike “10."

Page 38, line 21, overstrike "11." and insert immediately thereafter “10,"

Page 36, overstrike lines 22 and 23

Page 40, after line 3, ingert:

10190.0309




"SECTION 52. AMENDMENT, Section 57-38-29 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-38-29. Rete-ei-Han-on-individuals Optional method of computing tax.
Notw| ovisions of this chapter, an Individual, estate, or trust m .

n rovisions of thi v
elect 1o determine state inc x liabilit t isf { thi tion, A
tax i hereby imﬁosed upon every individual, to be levied, collected, and pald annually
with respect to the taxable income of such individual as defined in this chapter,
computed at the following rates:

1. Ontaxable income not in excess of three thousand dollars, a tax of two and
sixty-seven hundredths percent,

2. Ontaxable income in excess of three thousand dollars and not in excess of
five thousand dollars, a tax of four percent.

3. Ontaxable income in excass of five thousand dollars and not in excess of
elght thousand dollars, a tax of five and thirty-three hundredths percent,

4, Ontaxable income In excess of eight thousand clollars and not In excess of
fitteen thousand dollars, a tax of six and sixty-seven hundredths percent.

5.  On taxable income in excess of fifteen thousand dollars and not in excess
of twenty-five thousand dollars, a tax of eight percent.

6. On taxable income in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars and not in
excess of thirty-five thousand dollars, a tax of nine and thirty-three
hundredths percent.

7.  On taxable income in excess of thirty-five thousand dollars and not in
excess of fifty thousand dollars, a tax of ten and sixty-seven hundredths
percent,

8. On taxable income in excess of fifty thousand dollars, a tax of twelve
percent,

SECTION 53. AMENDMENT. Section 57-38-30.3 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-38-30.3. Simplified eptienal method of computing tax.

& A tax is hereby imposed for each taxable year upon income earned or
received in that taxable year by every resident and nonresident individual,
estate, and trust, This tax is fourteen persent of the individual's, eslate's,
or frust’s adjusted federal income tax liability for the taxable year. A
laxpayer computing the lax under this se : or those

IGUCTL IS S
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Provided, that for purposes of this section, any person required to file g
ﬂﬂs_.mgmg_ld i' ‘ azs_r_ellu_ r"niugn%ﬁw"uih ! ¢ but w f has not compyted a
federal income tax liability figure, shall compute a tederal income tax
iabllity figure using a pro forma return in order to determine a federal
ncome tax liability figure to be used as a starting point in computing state

inc tax under this section.

The adjusted federal income tax liability for a resident individual, estate,
and trust must be delermined by multiplying the federal income tax liability
by a fraction, the numerator of which is the adjusted gross income taxable
to this state and the denominator of which is the total adjusted gross
income as reported on the federal income tax return. To the extent they
are included in the taxpayer's federal adjusted gross income, the following
amounts must be excluded from the numerator:

a. Interest income from obligations of the United States and income
exempt from sfate income tax under federal statute or United States
or North Dakota constitutional provisions.

b. The portion of a distribution from a qualified investment fund
described in section 57-38-01 which Is attributable to investments by
the qualified investment fund in obligations of the United States,
obligations of North Dakota or its political subdivisions, and any other
obligation the interest from which is exempt from state income tax
under federal statute or United States or North Dakota constitutional
provisions,

¢.  An amount equal to the earnings that are passed through to a
taxpayer in connection with an allocation and apportionment to North
Dakota under chapter 57-36.3.

The adjusted federal income tax liabllity of a nonresident irdividual, estate,
and trust must be determined by multiplying the federal incuime tax fiability
by a fraction, the numerator of which is the adjusted gross income derived
from sources within this state and the denominator of which is the total
adjusted gross Income as ref:oned on the federal income tax return. To
the extent they are included in the taxpayer's federal adjusted gross
income, the following arnounts must be excluded from the numerator:

a. Interest income from obligations of the United States and income
exempt from state income tax under federal statute or United States
or North Dakota constitutional provisions.

b. The portion of a distribution from a qualified investment fund
described in section §7-38-01 which is attributable to investments by
the qualified investment fund in obligations of the United States,
obligations of North Dakota or its political subdivisions, and any other
obligation the interest from which is exempt from state income tax
undelr 't:derai slatute or United States or North Dakota constitutional
provisions.

¢.  Anamount equal to the earnings that are passed through to a
taxpayer In connection with an allocation and apportionment to North
Dakota under chapter 57-35.3.

For purposes o! this section, "lederal income tax fiability" means the
individual's, estate’s, or trust's feceral income tax computed for the taxable
year under Internal Revenue Code sections 1 and 3, relating to the
computation of the regular federal income tax belore credits, including
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calculation and tax rate modifications prescribed under other provisions of
the Internal Revenue Code, adjusted as follows:

a. Add the allernative minimum tax computed under Internal Revenue
Code section 55;

b.  Add the tax on a lump sum distribution computed under Internal
Revenue Code section 402; however, this adjustment does not apply
if the lump sum distribution is received while a nonresident of this
state and is exempt from taxation by this state under federal law;

c. Add the tax on an accumuiation distribution of a trust computed under
Internal Revenue Code section 667;

d.  Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 72(m)(5)
on excess benefits received from a qualified plan under Internal
Revenue Code section 401(a) or a qualified annuity under Internal
Revenue Code section 403(a);

e. Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 72(q){1)
on an early distribution from an annuity contract;

f.  Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 72(t)(1)
on an early distribution from a qualified retirement plan;

g. Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 4973(a)
on excess contributions o an individual retirement account, medical
savings account, and certain Internal Revenue Code section 403(b)
and annuity contracts; however, this adjustment does not apply if the
individual, estate, or trust Is a nonresident of this state;

h.  Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 4974(a)
on excess accumuiations in a qualified retirement plan; however, this
adjustment does not apply if the individual, estate, or trust is a
nonresident of this state;

I, Add the tax computed under internal Revenue Code section 4980A on
excess distributions from a qualified retirement plan; and

. Subtract the credit for prior year minimum tax computed under Internal
Hevenue Code section §3,

Unless specifically provided for In this subsection, no federal income tax
credit may be subtracted in determining the federal income tax liability for
purposes of this section,

6: 5. A husband and wile filing a joint federal income tax return shall file a joint
state Income tax return if the return is filed under this section. If separate
federal income tax returns are filed, one spouse's state income tax return
may be filed under this section and the other spouse's Income tax return
may be flled under the other provisions of this chapter.

#8, a Aresident individual, estate, or trust must be allowed a credit against
the tax otherwise due under this section lor the amount of any income
tax imposed on the taxpayer for the taxable year by another state or
territory of the United States or the District of Columbla on income
?helﬂvedlt‘rom sources therein and which is also subject to tax under

¢ section,
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b.  The credit provided under this subsection may not exceed the
proportion of the tax otherwise due under this section that the amount
of the taxpayer's adjusted gross income derived from sources in the
other taxing jurisdiction bears to the taxpayer's entire adjusted gross
income as reported on the laxpayar's federal income tax return.

8-1. a. Individuals, estates, or trusts receiving a refund of federal income tax
for a year for which an election to file state income tax returns has
been made under this section shall file amended state income tax
returns reducing the federal income tax liability for the year for which
the federal income tax refund is granted and may not report the
federal income tax refund in the year received.

b. Individuals, estates, or trusts assessed additional federal income tax
for a year for which an election to file state iIncome tax returns has
been made under this section shall file amended state income tax
returns increasing the federal income tax liability for the year for which
the additional federal income tax Is assessed and may not report
increased federal income tax liability in the year in which the additional
federal income tax is pald.

8: 8. The tax commissioner may prescribe procedures and guidelines to prevent
requiring income that had been previously taxed under this chapter from
becoming taxed again because of the provisions of this section and may
prescribe procedures and guldelines to prevent any income from becoming
exempt from taxation because of the provisions of this section if it would
otherwise have been subject to taxation under the provisions of this

chapter.

349: 9. Ataxpayer filing a return under this section Is entitled to the credit provided
. under section 57-38-01.20.

4+ 10, A taxpayer filing a return under this section is entitled to the exemptions or
credits provided under sections 40-63-04, 40-63-06, and 40-63-07.

SECTION 54. AMENDMENT. Section §7-38-54 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-38-54. Publication of statistics. The tax commissioner shall prepare and
publish blennially statistics reasonably available with respect to the operation of this
chapter, including amounts collected, classification of taxpayers, and such other facts

as are deemed pertinent and valuable. 0 !
-38-  percentage of adjusted federal tax liabllity and
|iax rates as If the tax were imposed on taxable

as the corresponding range of matginal
income,”

Page 40, after line 21, ingert:

“SECTION 59. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL CORRECTION OF STATUTORY
REFERENCES. The legisiative councii may replace references to the "department of
economic development and finance”, "division of community services®, "tourism
department”, and "depariment of economic development and finance division of
finance” with references to the “department of commerce division of economio
development and finance”, department of commerce division of community services”,
"depariment of commerce division of tourlsm®, “department of commerce division of
economic development and finance finance office”, "department of commerce®, and
"commigsioner of commaerce®, or any varlation of these terms as appropriate, in any
measure enacted by the fifty-saventh legislative assembily.”
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Page 40, line 27, replace "This" with "Sections 52 through 54 of this Act are effectlive for taxable
years beginning afier December 31, 2000, and the remainder of this"

. Renumber accordingly
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Roll Call Vote #: f
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE (420) Module No: SR-73-9220
April 24, 2001 6:20 p.m.
Insert LC: 10190.0309

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
8B 2032, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Mutch, Tollefson, Every and
Reps. Berg, Kelser, Lemieux) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the House
amendments on SJ pages 1160-1162, adopt amendments as follows, and place
SB 2032 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1160-1162 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1074-1076 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2032

be amended as follows: -

Page 1, line 3, remove "and”

Page 1, line 5, remove "and"

Page 1, line 6, remove "and"

Page 1, line 11, remove "and"

Page 1, line 12, remove "and" and after "55-06-01" insert ", 67-38-29, 57-38-30.3, 57-38-54"

Page 1, line 16, after "commerce” Insert ", income tax filing methods for individuals, and
publication of statistics by the tax commissioner”

Page 1, line 17, after the first semicolon insert "to provide for correction of statutory
references;”

Page 26, line 30, remove "Director” and overstiike "~ Appointment” and insert immediately

thereafter “Directot”
Page 26, line 31, overstrike "The" and remove "commissioner of"

Page 27, line 1, remove "commierce” and overstrike "shall appoint as director a person who Is
qualified by training, knowledge, and”

Page 27, oversirike lines 2 and 3

Page 27, line 4, overstrike "of the", remove the first "commissioner”, overstrike "and shall
receive a salary set by the", and remove the sevond "commissioner”

Page 27, line 5, overstrike "within the limits of legislative appropriations.”

Page 28, line 3, after the semicolon insert “and”

Page 28, line 4, overstrike "Report at least annually to an Interim committee designated by the
legislative"

Page 28, line 5, overstrike "councll on performance of all divisions of the", remove "dlyision”,
and overstrike "of economic*

Page 28, overstrike {ine 6

Page 28, line 7, overstrike “satigfaction the", remove "division”, and overstrike "of economiic
development and finance has in"

Page 28, overetrike lines 8 through 11

Page 28, lina 12, overstrike "9."
(1) DESK, (3) COMM Pa.1v NO. 1 bR73.8220
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' REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE (420) Module No: SR-73-9220
April 24, 2001 6:20 p.m.
e Insert LC: 10190.0309

Page 30, line 17, overstrike "1."

Page 30, line 21, overstrike "2, The", remove "commissioner of commerce”, overstrike “shall
appoint a director of the", and remove "division of"

Page 30, line 22, overstrike "tourism”, overstrike "who shall serve at the will of the", remove
"commissioner”, and overstrike the period

Page 33, replace lines 3 through 11 with:

"2, The commissloner shall appoint the director of any division created by the
commissioner under subsection 1.  Effective August1, 2003, the
commissioner _shall _appoint_the directors of the division of community
services, division of economic development and finance, and division of
workforce development. Effective August 1, 2005, the commissioner shall

appaint the director of the division of tourism. Each director appointed by

the commissioner_serves at the pleasure of the cominissioner and is
entitled to receive a salary set by the commissioner within the limits of
legislative appropriation. Until August 1, 2003, the governor shall appoint
the directors of the division of community services, division of economic
development and finance, and division of workforce development and until

1. 2005, the governor shall appoint the director of the division of
tourism. The Indlviduals appointed by the governor shall serve at the
pleasure of the governor and are entitied to reseive" a_salary set by the

governor within the limits of legislative appropriations.
Page 34, line 7, replace "on" with ";
a. On"
Page 34, line 8, replace ", on" with *;
b. On"
Page 34, line 9, replace ", on" with *;
¢. On"
Page 34, line 10, replace ", and summarizing" with ";
d On'

Page 34, line 11, after the underscored semicolon insert "and

Page 34, line 29, replace "axecutive committee" with *foundation”
Page 36, line 1, replace ", Including counsel in the” with *;
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d. M&M&Mmmﬂm
agriculture in the state; and"

Page 35, remove line 2

Page 35, line 3, replace "¢" with "g"

Page 35, line 4, replace "; and" with an underscored period
Page 35, remove line 5

Page 35, line 29, remove "commerce divigion of" and overstrike "economic”

Page 35, line 30, oversirike "development and finance" and Insert Immediately thereafter
"commerce” '

Page 38, ling 5, overstrike "hereby”
Page 38, line 6, overstrike "which" and insert immediately thereafter “that"”

Page 38, line 8, overstrike "and it” and insert immediately thereafter ", _The counci" and
overstrike the second "shall"

Page 38, line 9, overstrike "consist” and insert immediately thereafter "consists® and after "of"
insert "a traffic coun gel selected by the members of the ¢ l r ve of the

mﬂmﬂuuﬂmummm

Page 38, line 14, uverstrike "livestock Industry councll" and insert immediately thereafter

"North Dakota stockmen's association”
Page 38, line 15, after "Dakota" insert "state"

Page 38, line 18, overstrike "farmers"

Page 38, line 19, overstrike "The North Dakota railway lines."

Page 38, line 20, overstrike "10."
Page 38, line 21, overstrike “11." and insert immediately thereafter "10."

Page 38, overstrike lines 22 and 23

Page 40, after line 3, insert:

"S8ECTION 52. AMENDMENT. Section §7-38-29 of the North D.\kota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

87-3&29 m-mmm Qmm‘%;.mmmmﬁgmnumﬂ.m
‘ 1o sile Iy mmfu 'J provisions of this

) __ B n ; u ¥ y
with mpooz topt?\o uxpa%lo lnorgme of eUOh 'ndivlduul as doﬂned ln thls chapter,
computed at the following ralas:

1. On taxable Income not in excess vf three thousand dollars, a tax of two
and gixty-seven hundredths percent.
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2.  On taxable Income In excess of three thousand dollars and not in excess
of five thousand dollars, a tax of four percent.

3. On taxable income In excess of five thousand dollars and not in excess of
eight thousand dollars, a tax of five and thirty-three hundredths percent.

4. On taxable income In excess of eight thousand dollars and not in excess
of fifteen thousand dollars, a tax of six and sixty-seven hundredths

percent.

5. On taxable income in excess of fifteen thousand dollars and not in excess
of twenty-five thousand dollars, a tax of eight percent.

6. On taxable income In excess of twenty-five thousand dollars and not in
excess of thirty-five thousand dollars, a tax of nine and thirty-three
hurdredths percent.

7. On taxable income in excess of thirty-five thousand dollars and not in
excess of fifty thousand dollars, a tax of ten and sixty-seven hundredths

percent,

8. On taxable income In excess of fifty thousand dollars, a tax of twelve
percent.

SECTION 53. AMENDMENT. Section 57-38-30.3 of the North Dakota Century
. Code Is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-38-30.3. Simplified eptienal method of computing tax.

8: A tax is hereby Imposed for each taxable year upon income earned or
received in that taxable year by every resident and nonresident individual,
estate, and trust. This tax is fourteen percent of the individual's, estate's,
or trust's adjusted federal income tax llabllity for the taxable year. A

- s U

1§ WNO Nas ng mnmﬂd.ﬂ
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8- 2. The adjusted federal income tax liability for a resident individual, estate,

{2) DESK, (2) COMM

and trust must be determined by multiplying the federal income tax liability
by a fraction, the numerator of which is the adjusted gross income taxable
to this state and the denominator of which is the total adjusted gross
income as reported on the federal income tax return. To the extent they
are included in the taxpayer's federal adjusted gross income, the following
amcunts must be excluded from the numerator:

a.  Interest income from obligations of the United States and income
exempt from state income tax under federal statute or United States
or North Dakota constitutional provisions.

The Fortion of a distribution from a qualified Investment fund
described in section 57-38-01 which is attributable to investments by
tha qualified investment fund In oliigations of the United States,
obligations of North Dakota or its political subdivisions, and any other
obligation the interest from which is exempt from state Income tax
under tederal statute or United States or Nuiili Dakata constitutional
provisions.

An amount equal to the earnings that are passed through to a
taxpraver in connection with an allocation and apportionment to North
Dakotu under chapter 57-35.3.

The adjusied federal Income tax fiability of a nonreside¢ + ndividual, estate,
and trust must be determined by multiplying the federal ncome tax liability
by a fraction, the numerator of which is the adjusted gross income derived
from sources within this state and the denominator of which 's the total
adjusted gross income as reported on the federal Income tax return. To
the extent they are Included in the taxpayer's federal adjusted gross
income, the following amounts must be excluded from the numerator:

a. Interest income from obligations of the United States and income
exempt from state income tax under federal statute or United States
¢r North Dakota constitutional provisions.

The portion of a distribution fron: a qualifled investment fund
described In section §7-38-01 which is attributable to investments by
the qualified investment fund in obligations of the United States,
obligations of North Dakota or Its political subdivisions, and any other
obligation the Interest from which is exempt from state income tax
under federal statute or United States or North Dakota constitutional

provisions.

An amount equal to the earnings thut are passed through to a
taxpayer in connection with an allocation and apportionment to Norih
Dakota under chapter 57-35.3.

For purposes of this section, “federal income tax lability" means the
individual's, estate's, or trust's federal income tax computed for the taxable
year under Internal Revenue Code sections 1 and 3, relatlnF to the
computation of the regular fedaral income tax before credits, including
calcutation and tax rate modifications prescribed under other provisions of
the Internal Revenue Code, adjusted as follows:

a. Add the alternative minimum tax computed under Internal Revenue
Code section 58;
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Add the tax on a lump sum distribution computed under Iniernal
Revenue Code section 402; however, this adjustment does not apply
if the lumr sum distribution is received while a nonresident of this
state and Is exempt from taxation by this state under federal law;

Add the tax on an accurnulation distribution of a trust computed under |
Internal Revenue Code section 667,

Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 72(m)(5)
on excess benefits received from a qualified plan under Internal
Re¢venue Code section 401(a) or a qualified annuity under Internal
Revenue Code section 403(a);

Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 72(q)(1)
on an early distribution from an annuity contract;

Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 72(t)(1)
on an early distribution from a qualified retirement plan;

Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 4973(a)
on excess contributions to an individual retirement account, medical
savings account, and certain Internal Revenue Code section 403(b)
and annuity contracts; however, this adjustment does not apply if the
individual, estate, or trust Is a nonresident of this state;

Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 4974(a)
on excess accumulations in a qualified retirement plan; however, this
adjustment does not apply If the individual, estate, or trust Is a
nonresident of this state; :

Add the tax computed under Internal Revenue Code section 4980A
on excess distributions from a qualified retirement plan; and

Subtract the credit for prior year minimum tax computed under
Internal Revenue Code section 53.

Unless spacifically provided for in this subsection, no federal income tax
credit may be subtracted in determining the federal income tax liability for
purposes of this section.

A husband and wife filing a joint federal income tax return shall file a joint
state income tax return if the return Is filed under this section. If separate
federal Income tax returns are filed, one spouse’s state Income tax return
may be filed under this section and the other spouse's income tax return
may be filed under the other provisions of this chapter.

b.

A resident individual, estate, or trust must be allowed a credit agrinst

the tax otherwise due under this section for the amount of any income

tax Imposed on the taxpayer for the taxable year by another siate or

territory of the United States or the District of Columbia on Iincome

?':l:wmt{;om sources therein and which is also subject to tax under
section.

The credit provided under this subsection may not exceed the
proportion of the tax otherwise due under this section that the amount
of the taxpayer's adjusted gross income derived from sources in the
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other taxing jurisdiction bears to the taxpayer's entire adjusted gross
income as reported on the taxpayer's federal income tax return,

8:7. a. Individuals, estates, or trusts receiving a refund of federal income tax
for a year for which an election to file state income tax returns has
been made under this section shall file amended state income fax
returns reducing the federal income tax liabllity for the year for which
the federal income tax refund is granted and may not report the
federal income tax refund in the year recelved.

b. Individuals, estates, or trusts assessed additional feders' income tax
for a year for which an election to file state income tax returns has
been made under this section shall file amended state income tax
returns increasing the federal income tax liabllity for the year for
which the cdditional federal income tax is assessed and may not
report increased federal income tax liability in the year in which the
additional federal income tax Is paid.

8: 8, The tax commissioner may prescribe procedures and guidelines to prevent
requiring Income that had been previously taxed under this chapter from
becoming taxed again because of the provisions of this section and may
grescribe procedures and guidelines to prevent any income from

ecoming exempt from taxation because of the provisions of this section if
it would otherwise have been subject to taxation under the provisions of

this chapter.
30 9. Alaxpayer filing a return under this section Is entitled to the credit provided
. under section 57-38-01.20.
H- 10. A taxpayer flling a return under this section s entitled to the exemptions ot

credits provided under sections 40-63-04, 40-63-06, and 40-63-07.

SECTION 54. AMENDMENT. Section 57-38-54 of the North Dakota Century
Code Is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-38-54. Publication of statistics. The tax commissioner shall prepare and
publish biennially statistics reasonably available with respect to the operation of this
chapter, including amounts collected, classification of taxpayers, and such other facts
as are deemed pertinent and valuable. The commissioner shall publish the tax rate

e ) 57-38-30.3 as a perc of te oral tax liability and
rre e nal tax rates as if the tax were imposed on taxable

Income.”
Page 40, after line 21, ingert:

"SECTION 59. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL CORRECTION OF STATUTORY

REFERENCES. The legislative council may replace references to the “department of

econymio development and finance”, "division of community services”, "tourism

depatment”, and “department of economic development and finance division of

finance” with references to the "department of commerce division of economic

development and finance", department of commerce division of community services”,

"department of commerce division of tourism", "depariment of commerce division of

. economic development and finance finance office”, "department of commerce”, and

"commissioner of commerce®, or any variation of these terms as appropriate, in any
measure enacted by the fifty-seventh legislative assembly."
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Page 40, line 27, replace "This" with "Sections 2 through 54 of this Act are effective for
taxable years beginning after December 31, 2000, and the remainder of this"

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2032 was placed on thie Seventh order of business on the calendar.
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Testimony of Miles Friedman, President, National Association of State Development Agencies
(NASDA), on the Proposal to Create a North Dakota Department of Commerce (Senate Bill
2032)...Before the Senate Industry, Business & Labor Committee.. January 10, 2004

Mr. Chairmun, Scenators, good moming, and thunk you for this opportunity to address the
Commitiee on the proposed North Dakota Department of Commerce and related organizational
proposuls. ‘This is a subject near and dear (o me, as | have been involved in helping to develop
this proposal and have spent considerable time working with the staff of the North Dak.ota
Department of Economic Development and Finance (ED&F), with the Governor’s office, with
members of the Interim Committee on Commerce and Labor, with members of the Economic
Development Association of North Dakota (EDND) and the Greater North Dakotu Association
(GNDA), and with many other menibers of the North Dakota economic development community,

Background

By way of background, the company I work tor, NASDA, was asked to assist the leadership of
ED&F and the Interim Committee and we began collaborating with them in March of 2000, We
were asked specifically to address the potential for consoiidation of economic development
programs and the prospects for increasing private sector participation in the state’s program.,

At NASDA, we traditionally work with all fifty states on issues like these, and have been doing
so for over fifty years. We are an association of state development agencies, which has grown
over the years into a comprehensive national cconomic development organization. Throughout
the years, including my twenty plus years at its helm, NASDA has addressed the central issue of
how states organize for economic developnient, including the movement in the pust decade to
“privatize” this function,

NASDA Perspective

For over fifty years, NASDA has worked with state development agencies all over the country to
help them stay on top of the latest trends in economic development and to find ways to
strengthen their own programs. In that capacity, NASDA has assisted with and documented the
evolution of state agencies as they progressed from very rudimentary, single purpose offices, to
broad based, multi-faceted organizations with a wide range of program responsibilities.

We maintain special programs in most major areas of concentration for economic development
agencies, including: marketing and investment attraction; international trade and investment;
travel and tourism development; economic development research; local/regional economic
development and enterprise zones; technology development; business finance; and workforce
development. We compi’e the most complete directory of state business incentives in the United
States and document state efforts in international trade and most functional areas of economic

development.

States depend upon us to keep up with and inform them on creative and effective ways to address




economic development needs and opportunities, and we do so through numerous workshops,
white papers, focus groups, training programs, website services, newsletters and specinl events,
For more thun twenty years, we have also served as a non-profit consultunt to states in cach of the
wreas mewtioned atvve, as well as conducting program ussessments, re-organizations and
strategic planning studics for the states,

Most recently, NASDA launched a special program for state and regional organizations
interzsted In privatization and public-private partnerships., We have formed the Nationel
Resource Center for Public-Private Partnerships, have conducted two workshops on the subject
and have compiled a database of statc and regional partnerships for economic development. We
are also in the process of forming a National Technology Alliance, which will becorne a
clearinghouse fur the numerous regional technology partnerships that are arising around the

country.

It was this experience and these services, thut led ED&F and the Interim Commitice to ask for
our assistance in helping to assess opportunities for enhancing the North Dakota economic

development program.
A First Look at North Dakota

We started out by looking at the way the state was organized and funded for its economic
development programs, and were somewhat surprised to learn that there were more than 20
different agencics and organizations which were receiving state funds to operite cconomic
development programs. We worked to determine what the perception was of: what constitutes
an economic development program, und of course found & wide range of opinions on this subject,
One thing that many people agreed upon was that there was a broad range of program arcas that
were essential to the state's economic development function.

Intrinsic to our work was the background ook we took at ED&F, and we were encouraged to
find that, for the most part, the state would not have to overcome any serious image problems. In
fact, the agency got generally high marks from those we talked to, (as did most of the existing
players). The biggest concerns were about: the diversity of players getting state funds, with no
central clearinghouse; the absence of a strong global development program; the concern over
relative roles between state and local developers; whether the resources available to economic
development were adequate; ard the degree of private sector involvement in the state program.

The predominant feeling was that ED&F had many of the tools it needed, and that those that
were missing could be added to this basic structure fairly comfortably. With the addition of
some functions and the incorporation of others that were currently outside the agency, most
people felt that an expanded ED&F could ¢volve into the Commerce Department that the state
needed. In other words, rather than a radical departure, this would be a smooth, evolutionary
process, that would leave the state in a stronger position, without causing a major disruption.

As the central player at the state level, ED&F got generally high inarks for its performance, but
there were concerns that its mandate was not broad enough and that some in the business




community and the local economic development community did not find it to be a “full service”
agency, Functions such as intemnational trade were underdeveloped, and others such as training,
tourism and community development were operated outside the agency. A stronger, more
coordinated organization, which at the same time was able to more aggressively mobilize to
support local economic efforts, was what many people were hoping for. In fact, local
development officials, through their association (EDND) had already drafted just such a proposal
and had endorsed the concept of a rovamped state ED agency in this mold.

The other incscapable issue was one that raised the question of how to more fully involve the
private sector in the state’s program. Some, including members of the state legislature nearly
two years ago, had called for a change that would tum the entire state ED program over to a
private organization, as has been tried in severa) other states, Others were looking for
alternatives, that would increase private sector input and support, without switching the entire
program to ourely private control. Experience suggested to us that a solution short of complete
privatization had the best chance of working.

What NASDA Recommends and Why

Our recommendations were all based on what has worked in other states, with modifications
built around North Dakota's own unique circumstances. Large, comprehensive commerce
departments have become the norm for coordinating and piggybacking diverse economic
development programs. Other mechanisms have been sought to bring some consistency to a
state's overall program mix and to augment accountability, and creative methods are being
o implemented to channel private sector interests and resources in support of state programs.

It is fair to say that building on the innovations of other states can allow North Dakota to create
its own individual mix of tools, while allowing it to maintain its competitive position amony its
neighbors and other states,

Essential to any recommendations was our attempt to assess what North Dakotans thought that
economic development is and how they thought it should be pursued. We also looked at what
roles people saw for state, local and other players.

First, we suggesied creating a centralized, comprehensive North Dakota Department of

Commerce. The critical idea was to create more synergy among the state's economic
development programs, creating an atmosphere in which optimal opportunities for coordination
of programs might occur. Beyond that thougit was the idea of creating something close to a one
stop shop, where businesses and communities would know where to turn in order to access the
state’s resources. Furthermore, a more unified agency would provide better command and
control for the Governor and more accountability to the legislature and the taxpayers of North
Dakota. Such a move would also place North Dakota more in the mainstream in terms of the

’ direction that most other states have been taking in the way they organize.

} . Central to this theme was that of creating the critical mass of program areas needed to operate a




strong stute program. This meant including the core of the ED&F program, such as services 1o
existing businesses, Investment attraction, finance, research, and reinvigorating the global
business development program, It also meant folding in some programs from among other
cruclal economic development program areas, such as travel and tourism, employment and
truining, and community development. In addition, we strongly recommended building a strong
segional outreach network, that could serve as a mechanism tor delivering state scrvices to the
communities and expanding ii: - ut by the local developers to the state program. Last, but not
Jeast, we have urged that North Dakota embark on a process to devise a long term strategic
economic development plan for the state; but more on that a bit later,

Jt should be noted that moving development programs into the Commerce Department need not
weaken those programs, but rather, should allow them to flourish, Travel and tourism, for
example, has been folded into more traditional economic development program organizations in
most states, as they have realized that this is one of the top industries and employers in most
states. Tourism programs benefit by becoming more closely intertwined with business
development programs and finding their way into the strategic planning process for economic
development. This can pay huge dividends when it comes to investing in infrastricture, setting
up guidelines for business assistance programs, developing criteria for financing and incentive
programs and looking for synergies with outreach and marketing programs. What’s inore, an
increasing number of local economies have set tourism as their primary goal for economic
expansion, especially In smaller rural communities. The strongest mandate we have from the
NASDA Tourism Division members, has been to help them become more fully integrated into
the economic development planning and manage ment system,

W d taCo ' stablished, so as 1o maximize

cooperation and collaboration among the various sta'c funded bodies that retain some economic
development responsibilities. Naturally, not every state funded ED program would be folded into
the new Commerce Department. A Commerce Cabinet would provide a forum through which
the various relevant agencies could communicate, coordinate and cooperate. 1t would increase
the ability of the Governor to mount a unified economic development program and to hold his or
her agencies accountable for results. Likewise, it would allow the legislature greater peace of
mind, that it was not funding a string of uncoordinated and unconnected set of state programs,
The Commerce Cabinet would consist of agency heads or senior deputies, who would meet
regularly, under the chairmanship of the Cominerce Secretary.

Third, as the glue that would hold the apparatus together, we recommended that the state move to
a unified economic development budget. This budget would cover all agencies that expend state

funds for economic development, and would be submitted through the Commerce Department.
All agencies with ED budget requests would have to submit them to the Secretary of Commerce
to be vetted, and he/she would determine how those budget requests dovetail with the state’s
overall economic development strategy. Thus, the Governor’s subinission to the legislature
would place all ED expenditures in one place, which would allow both the Governor and the
legislature to identify all such expenditures, and to see how they fit together. Once again, this
would strengthen the Governor’s ability to lead a unified consistent program, and would enhance
overall accountability to the legislature for how state funds are being spent.




Pourth, we addressed the privatization issue by recommending the creation of ap cconomic
development foundation, with a private board that would be appointed by the govemor. The

Foundation Board would become a valued advisory panel for the Governor and Commerce
Depariment and would serve as a valued opportunity for key private players to have input to the
state program, The Foundation itself could undertake several functions that would tap the
unique private expertise and standing of its membership. Specifically, the Foundation would be
the idcal body to oversee strategic planning and goal setting that would guide the state's efforts to
strengthen its economy and could help set benchmurks with which to ascess the effectiveness of
the state’s programs. Furthermore, the Foundation would be a resource for such uniquely private
programs such as state ambassadors and mentors programs, Serving as ambassadors, company
executives could help represent the state to outside interests, and as mentors they could assist
instate companies. The Foundation Board could be selected by the Governor, with input from
the legislature, and with nominations coming from key private sector groups in the state.
Staggered terms would help gain some timeline consistency, without compromising

accountability.

-

w e .-

The foundation concept is based on the best of what has worked in other states. For the most

part, those experiments with complete privatization have been characterized by confusion,

controversy, dissension, competition and ultimately, re-organization. The most successful and

enduring arrangements have bean those where private non-profits have becn established with

specific, gap-filling functions in mind. This approach would effectively engage the private sector
. in support of the state’s program and would add broader capacity to meet state economic

T S

development goals. All in all, the foundation would serve as an effective partner to the

Commerce Department, would ada .. helpful tool in developing and impiementing the '
Govemor's program, would increase the confidence of the legisiature that the state ED program

was addressing private sector needs, and would provide a source of input and buy-in to the state

program for businesses around the state.

It is important to note that the overall proposal would not be creating a more bureaucratic
monolith at the state level, but in fact, would be putting in place a more flexible tool for pursuing
economic development objectives, and one that would be more capable of being responsive to
businesses and local economic development officials. It would do so by creating a focal point
for accessing all state resources and by allowing parties throughout the state an easier opportunity
to hold the state accountable for its programs. What's more, this more comprehensive, more
connected, more unified structure, would be in a stronger position to support local economic
development efforts, especially once the regional outreach program was in place. By developing
a long term strategic economic development plan, the state would also add some predictability to
its programming and would provide a guidepost against which all parties could assess program

success.




In Conclusion

I beliove that these proposals would help position North Dakota at the forefront of the national
cconomic development movement and would enable the state to take full advantage of o uniquc
opportunity to advance its economy for the next millennium, There is a window here for this
Govemor and Legislature to take historic steps that will move the state forward in great strides,
while building on a solid foundation of North Dakoia resources and tradition.

The excitement of a new Administration, coupled with the enthusiastic bi-bipartisan support for
growth and change, are buttressed by a stirring commitment from the business community and
local economic developers. This is a crossroads that should not be ignored. A great deal of
momentum has gathered for enhancing the State’s economic development program, und this
should not be wasted. I applaud the foresight demonstrated by the legislature’s Interim
Committee, and the courage of Governor Hoeven in endorsing the Commerce proposal during
the campaign. Now, the time is here to step boldly forward, making a statement to busincsses
and developers, not only in North Dakota, but all over the country, as to the strength and
direction of your commitment,

As always, NASDA stands ready (o assist in any way you need, and we will be aggressive in
publicizing these exciting changes to the development community all over the United States.

Thank you again, for inviting me here today, and for the opportunity to work with so many fine
people and organizations in North Dakota,
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. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION
OF NORTH DAKOTA

"EDND'S VISION FOR THE NEW MILLENNIUM"

Goal #1 - 25,000 new primary sector jobs will be created in ND between 2000 and 2005

Goal #2 - ND's per cepita income will be at least 93% of the national average by 2005

To achieve these goals, a clear definition of economic development must be understood.
Economic development is a process - not an event - where public policy and the free enterprise
intersect to generate "Primary Sector” growth that creates better jobs and personal wealth
creation resulting in a higher standard of living for every member of the State.

The new millennium is bringing new economic development trends which the State of North
Dakota needs to recognize and adjust to in order to capitalize on existing and future economic
opportunities, These trends include:

o Globalization
Technology & Telecommunications

Regionalism
Sustainable Development & Financial Commitment

Workforce Development

The purpose of the Economic Development Association of North Dakota (EDND) vision is to
develop a realistic approach for EDND, the State Legislature and the citizens of North Dakota to
follow for understanding and promoting a positive economic future for the State. The following
are specific issues that EDND recommends the State of North Dakota address and incorporate
into a solid and comprehensive legislative strategy and vision for North Dakota.

1.) Establish a North Dakota Department of Commerce structure, State agencies who play

a particularly active role in promoting economic development in North Dakota would come
together under the umbrella of one public/private agency allo'ving them to function together
with a shared strategic plan maximizing each others strengths. This issue is currently being
explored by the Interim Commerce & Labor Committee. Agencies to be considered for
inclusion in the Department of Commerce would include:

¢ ND Department of Economic Development & Finance
ND Tourism Department
ND Department of Community Services
ND Labor Department
ND Workforce Development Council




‘nilve programs, The State of North Dakota muss

2)
. continue to provide finance and incentive programs to support future business start-up,

expansion and recruitment projects. The following are existing programs the EDND
supports remaining intact and funded at the suggested levels.

ND PACE - Leave the program as is presently structured -- $6,600,000
AG-PACE - Leave the program as is presently structured -- $1,500,000

North Dakota Development Fund - Keep the program in place while keeping the
regional rural development portion of the fund in place -- $5,000,000

Community Development Block Grant Program - Leave the program as {s presently
structured.

Renaissance Zones - Recommend the following enhancements to the program,

o Increase the tax credits available for Renaissance Venture Corporations and
additional $2,500,000

o Allow the income and properiy tex exemption for renovation of currently
owned residential property if it meets the minimum criteria.

Corporate Income Exemptions - Leave the program as is presently structured
Property Tax Exemptions - Leave the program as is presently structured

Sales & Use Tax Exemptions on Manufacturing & Processing Equipment
Maintain the program as is presently structured to provide the exemption for
primary sector manufacturing and processing companies. Recommend expanding
the exemption to be applied to primary sector information processing companies
as well. Such companies make up one of North Dakota's primary targeted
industries and the State of North Dakota is not affording these businesses an equal
opportunity to benefit from the Sales & Use Tax Exemption on Manufacturing &
Processing Equipment as it is presently structured, Recommend that the
exemption be expanded to be applicable to equipment within North Dakota based
primary sector information processing companies. This equipment would include
phone switches, WAN & LAN equipment, PBX equipment, servers, storage
equipment, etc. It would not include desktop hardware and/or peripherals.

In order to attract and develop new companies that will compete in today's changing
economy, new programs need to be established. Such programs would include:
Investment Capital Fund - Recommend the establishment of a public/private risk
investment fund aimed at providing start-up capital for entrepreneurial business.
Targeted at e-commerce, information technology, and advanced technology
companies.

(




Speculative Bullding Program - Recommend the establishment of a speculative
building finance program, The program would encourage private sector investment
in speculative commercial buildings for primary sector business use. The program
would offer a two-year walver of property taxes and special assessments as long us
the buildings constructed meet with the approval of the community and local
development corporations. The Bank of North Dakota would provide participation
loans to private developers to finance the speculative building on a short-term basis
offering a two year window of no principle or interest payments on the permanent
financing. If within this two year period the developer sells the building for a non-
primary sector use, the developer would be required to repay the value of the
incentives including the value of the tax exemption recelved up to the point of sale.

3.) Workforce Development, Despite North Dakota's declining population, the State is
realizing a growth in new jobs being created and total statewide employment. This has

begun to create a shortage of workers in the State. To support continued growth, the State of
North Dakota must continue to support workforce development, training, and recruitment
programs. Existing programs that have been extremely successful (although underfunded)
that must be continued and funded at higher levels include:

o  Workforce 2000 - Restore to a higher level of funding and reinstate the original
intent of the "New Job Definition" so retraining and upgrading for existing employees
qualify. Restrict assistance to primary sector jobs only, -- $2,500,000
New Jobs Training Program - Mairitain the program as presently designed.
Workforce Training Initiative - Support the Workforce Training Initiative passed by
the 1999 legislative session. The quadrant workforce training initiative offices would
be supported through a combination of public/private funding sources.

Other workforce training programs/initiatives that warrant consideration based upon the
growing demand for skilled workers include:
¢ Development of a state supported labor recruitment program
o Development of an incentive program for college graduates to stay and work in ND
o Explore a low interest mortgage rate program that would attract employees back to
North Dakota working in targeted industries.
Direct the ND University System to be strengthen and/or develop program offerings
that are flexible, responsive and relevant to statewide economic development targeted
industries and emerging industries. “Supplying Tomorrow's Workforce".




4.) Economic Develspment Marketing, Public Relations & Educatlon. North Dakota is well
known to the worle as a fourist destination, However, it is virtually unknown as a
destination for primary sector business operations and investment. To realize carlicr stated
goals, the State of ND must successfully start-up new companies, expand existing companies
and recruit outside companies through a well defined strategy that would include:

» Decvelop and adequately fund a business attraction marketing progrom to bring more
primary sector employment into ND. -- $2,000,000 minimum appropriation.

e Locate & promote venture capital investment into North Dakota businesses
Maintain programs like the Manufacturers Extension Parinership program to assess
the needs of ND businesses and inform them of opportunities to sapport their
continued growth.

Promote entrepreneurship offerings taking place statewide.
Support educational programs targeted at promoting professionalism and skills
development for in-state economic development professionals.

5.) Technology Infrastructure Development. Development and implementation of a statewide
plan connecting all of North Dakota with a replete fiber optics and broad bandwidth network
is a necessity for North Dakota to compete in the ever-expanding worldwide marketplace.
The sooner North Dakota (state-wide) is more completely connected to the rest of the world,
the quicker the State can begin to reap the rewards of new growth that will follow.

6.) Agriculture Support & Development. Regardless of the huge strides the State of North
Dakota has made to diversify its economy, agriculture still remains one of our most vital
industries. Every effort must be made at the state level to continue to support existing
programs as they presently exist and to consider developing new programs that have the
capacity to support the shift in our State from a commodity producing State to a food
producing State,

o Support the Ag Products Utilization Commission at its current level of funding (i.e.
with rural gas tax funding).
Support the Beginning Farmer Loan Program as is presently structured.
Support the Ag Mediation & Aduit Farm Management Program as is presently

structured.
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Testinaony on SB 2032, Senate Industry Business and Labor Committee
Tracy Potter, Bismarck
January 10, 2001

Chairman Mutch, members of the committeo, my name is Tracy Potter. I am president and
executive director of the Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation, but I come before you today without
consultation about the Department of Commerce with the Board of Directors of our Foundation.
I really don’t know what position the Board would take on thi3 issue, either collectively or
individually, Iam speaking as a private citizen who has been involved in tourism promotion and
development for more than thirteen years and as someone who has served in both the Tourism
Department and in the Tourism Division, when it was a smaller part of two larger agencies, I
urge you to amend $B2032 to remove the Tourism Department from the new Department of

Commerce.

The state travel division was bom in the Highway Department, It became the Tourism Division of
the Economic Development Commission and thon was taken out of EDC and merged into the
Parks and Tourlsm Department. It didn’t fit in any of those agencies.

Tourism marketers are not your typical bureaucrats. North Dakota tourism promoters are even
less bureaucratic than their peers in other states, They are what is known as “guerilla marketers.”
Given North Dakota's lack of reputation as a tourism hotspot, they need to be creative and often
irreverent guerilla marketers. An agency with a mindset like that can do a lot of good for our
state, but it doesn't fit in with the way things are done in any other state agency I've seen.

Creating an independent Tourism Department was a long-held goal of North Dakota’s tourism
sector. During George Sinner’s last term it seemed possible to pass legislation creating a Tourism
Department, but Govemor Sinner let it be known that he opposed it. As soon as Ed Schafer was
elected, the 1993 Session made the Tourism Department an independent cabinet-level agency and
Govemnor Schafer signed it into law as one of his administration’s first accomplishments.

Governor Hoeven and the Commerce Department proponents have only honorable intentions.
They believe that tourism promotion will be well served in the new agency. They told me that
when I told them I would have to oppose taking tourism out of the cabinet. They are wrong

~ about the results of this effort.

Three bad things happen when Tourism is made part of a bigger agency. First, staff meetings.
Second, money and staff get diverted in the interests of the larger agency. Third, tourism

 advertising gets misdirected.

Often it is true that the most attractive elements of a tourism destination are exactly contrary to
the image economic developers wish to present. Tourism presents scenic vistas without people,
without siokestacks, without powerlines. Economic developers tend to like those things when

they are trying to site a new industry.




Senate IBL 2032, comments of Tracy Potter

Then too, the places tourism needs to advertise are entirely different than the places economic
developers wish they would advertise. Their markets are entirely different.

Two last points, First, in diminishing the status of the Tourism Director, you would be
undercutting your own ability to influence tourism policy. Today the Tourism Director has two
“bosses,” the Govemor and the Legislatare. Give him three bosses, and put one of them directly
over him on a day-to-day basis, and the Legislature’s directions will naturally become less

important to the director.

And lastly, tourism is an important, stable and growing sector of our state’s economy. It is only
going to become more important In the coming decades. The many historical attractions, the
hotels, Medora, the restaurants, the Peace Garden, the bed and breakfasts, the guides and
outfitters, the gas stations, and all the people who work in those places, they deserve an agency
that works and speaks for them. The Tourism Department does that, Please let it keep on doing

that,
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mfriedman(@@nasda.com

Name Department Phone

Allan Stenchjem ND Tourism 328-2527 _
Ron Rauschenberger  ND Div. of Community Service  328-4499

Lee Peterson ED&F 328-5300

Linda Butts ED&F 328-5342

Randy Schwartz ED&F 328-5314

Jim Hirsch E D & F Workforce 328-5345

Miles Friedman NASDA (703) 490-6777
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Greater North Dakota Assoclation

STATEMENT BY DALE O. ANDERSON, PRESIDENT, GREATER NORTH
DAKOTA ASSOCIATION, REGARDING ENGROSSED 8B 2032, NORTH
DAKOTA HOUSE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR COMMITTEE;
MARCH 13, 2001.

Chalrman Berg and members of the House Industry, Business and Labor
Committee, | am Dale O. Anderson, Prasident, Greater North Dakota
Association. Thank you for this opportunity to provide comments
regarding Engrossed 8B 2032,

The Greater North Dakota Association is the voice for business and
principal advocate for positive change for North Dakota. GNDA was
organized in 1926 as a statewide, general business organization. The
organization’s membership of 1,000 is an economic and geuvgraphic cross
section of North Dakota’s private sector, including statewide associations
and local chambers of commerce, development organizations and
convention and visitors entities. GNDA is governed by a 26 member Board
of Directors elected by GNDA's membership. The Board of Directors
establishes the organization’s policy.

GNDA is involved in a new initiative referred to as “The New Economy
Initiative.” The thrust of this Initiative is that the “New Economy” Is not
composed of new industries, rather it is industries functioning in
fundamentally different ways.

One important aspect of the New Economy is the breakdown of borders
and physical distances as relevant in company location strategies. This
means that North Dakota no longer simply must compete with its
neighbors, but must consider each state in the U.S. -~ if not global peers -

as its true competitors.

$B 2032

GNDA is actively supporting SB 2032 because the department’s
structure would:

Fill a priority need in one stop shopping;

« Create better communication, cooperation and coordination among
those invoived in economic development;

T 6t et hteg S Hatatch NPV OBYOS @ (A2 0000 8 L 00) LA EOET o LB Stk it @ g st ont o nids e e

Nerth Daketa’s State Chamber of Commerce




Allow the state to achieve more with its limited resources;

Provide for more accountabiiity; and

Allow for more flexibllity to address New Econoiny challenges and
opportunities.

Chairman Berg and members of the House Industry, Business and Labor
Committee, GNDA, the voice of business and principal advocate for
positive change for North Dakota, recommends a do pass for Engrossed
SB 2032. | welcome your questions.
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Bricfing Paper on Program Interrelations within DCS

In viewing the respective programs within DCS we have, for budgetary purposes, categorized our
programs into four major strategics, These are; Community Development; Encrgy
Efficiency/Renewable Energy; Seif Sufficiency(Low Income Assistance); and Technical
Assistanco. On the surface a conclusion could be reached that the programs within cach area
and, therefore, the strategics might be separate and distinct, This conclusion could be drawn
bused upon several factors including clientele served, and program purpose.

However, there are interrelations and commonalities between the programs and strategics that
need to be recognized and examined to fully understand the inter-relationships that exist,

Community Development

The programs within this strategy include: the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
program, the HOME, program, and the Emergency Shelter Grants Program(ESGP). All three
programs arc funded by the U.S. Dept. of Housing & Urban Development(HUD),

- The CDBG program focuses on housing, infrastructure, and economic development
projects which benefit low and moderate income individuals,

- The HOME program is for developing and providing housing opportunities for low and
moderate houscholds.

- The ESGP programs focus is on assisting shelters and other organizations benefitting
homeless individuals,

Clearly CDBG and HOME programs have a common community development focus(hiousing,
infrastructure, & economic development) while ESGP has a focus on homelessness. However,
all three of these programs are governed by a single plan (The Consolidated Plan) which serves
. as a single application for these grant programs. The Consolidated Plan is a federal program
requirement by HUD. Also all three programs primarily benefit low and moderate income
persons.

:
5
;

A N T

Energy Efficiency/Renewable Energy

The programs within this strategy include: the State Encrgy Plan (SEP), the State Building
Energy Conservation Program, and other energy efficiency/renewable energy initiatives. Much
i of the funding for these programs comes from the U.S. Dept. of Energy. The commonality for
o these programs are apparent. What is not so apparent is the potential that renewable energy has
in the area of economic/community development. This is evidenced by the recent interest and
potential that the wind cnergy industry has as a source of jobs and income in its development.

T T T T e o




An example of the interrelationships of programs within the energy strategy with other DCS
programs noted in other strategies would be a iuw income housing project in Kenmare, ND. A (
six-unit low income housing project in Kenmare was assisted by both the HUD HOMLE: program

and funding through a DCS rencwable cneryy initiative, The HOME funds were used to assist

with the construction of the complex , while encrgy funds were used to purchase and install a

ground source heat pump system to heat & cool the facility.

Self Sufficlency (L.ow Income Assistance)

Programs within this DCS strategy include: the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG)
program, the Community Food & Nutrition Program (CF&N), the Weatherizalion Assistance
Program (WAP), and the Emergency Heating & Cooling Program. While the CSBG and CF&N
programs receive their funds from the U.S. Dept of Health & Human Services, the Weatherizaton
program receives funding from the U.S. Dept. of Encrgy(DOE) with supplemental funds from the
LIHEAP (U.S. Dept. of HHS) program. The LIHEAP program also provides funding for the

Emergency Heating & Cooling progam.

- The CSBQG program focuses on a multitude of initiatives and programs to reduce poverty,
revitalizing low-income communitics, and assisting low income individuals become self
sufficient (up to and including workforce training). In North Dakota CSBG funds are
required to be channcled 1o the states’ seven community action agencies (CAA's) to
provide outreach and administrative services in all arcas of the state.

The CF&N is a small program designed to provide grants to entitics within the state
which support statewide efforts that facilitate food & nutrition services to low &
moderate income individuals. The CF&N funds are a component of and come from the

CSBG program.

i

‘
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The Weatherization program fucuses on installing energy efficiency improvements within
the homes of low and moderate income houscholds, As with the CSBG program
Weatherization services are provided through the seven Community Action Agencies

within the state.
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The Emergency Heating & Cooling Program in a way is a complementary program of the
Weatherization program. Its focus is to repair or replace unsafe or unusable furnaces in
low & moderate income households. It also purchases and repairs air conditioners for
low & moderate income persons where there is a documented medical need.

e A B T A A T P

All the programs within this strategy on the surface could be considered to be socially related
programs since they are aimed at assistance programs for low income individuals. However, so
can the programs under the community development stratey,y since those programs are also
targeted toward low & moderate income persons. At the same time the DOE & LIHEAP
weatherizaton programs and Emergency Heating & Cooling Program are energy programs which




relate to the energy sirategy.

One major commonality of all the programs within this strategy is the service delivery channel,
All these programs utllize the states’ seven Community Action Agencies (CAA's) to deliver the
services locally. Even the Century Code (chapter 54-44.5)which establishes DCS ties the CAA’s
o DCS.

Within this strategy CSBG funds not only assist in outreach and administrative costs associated
with the HOME program, weatherization programs, and other community based programs. The
CSBG program also contributes to community development/workforce development in so far as
the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 specifies that CSBG be a part of, and coordinated with, in
the development and facilitation of workforce initiatives. This has resulted in ties between the
self-sufficiency initiatives of CSBG and the workforce development efforts within North Dakota,
An example would be the coordination and ties with the CRISND.com web site and the one stop
center established by the North Dakota workforce development council.

Since the Weatherization programs and Emergency Heating & Cooling focus on rehabilitating
the energy effective components of low income housing, the DCS is taking steps to further
leverage CDBG & HOME housing rehabilitation dollars by coordinating where possible
resulting in a leveraging of available funds. The CAA's are also related to the HOME program
as they directly administer HOME funds to provide housing for low & moderate income
individuals as part of the community development strategy.

Technical Assistance Strategy

Programs within this strategy include the Renaissance Zone program, Building Code
Administration, American with Disabilities Act (ADA) technical assistance, Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and federal & state fair housing laws. Funding for these initiatives
comes from the States’ General Fund.

The Renaissance Zone program is a redevelopment/development tool for communities clearly
relate to the community development strategy since the tax incentives provided directly impact
economic development, infrastructure, and housing projects in cities which obtain zone status.

The Building Code activities directly relate to housing and commercial development/
redevelopment,

The ADA technical assistance also relates to issues of construction and development since
businesses and uniis of government must take the ADA requirements into consideration when
constructing, remodeling, or expanding facilities. For entities receiving federal grant funds,
Section 504 along with ADA is an issue, as is the construction of apartments with four or more
dwelling units that must comply with the federal and state fair housing laws and state & local

building codes.




Administrative Support

Administrative support in DCS centers around fiscal support and clerical support. Over 95% of
the funding for DCS comes from federal or other sources subject to federal or other judicially
imposed regufations. In addition, ninety-three percent (93%) of the funds requested in DCS's
budget are passed on to sub-recipient or grantee agencics in the form of grants or contracts. This
requires that progremmatic st>f¥ within DCS have extensive support from both fiscal and clerical

staff,

The fiscal staff, in consultation with the program staff, is responsible for issuing and tracking all
the grants and contracts for the agency programs. Tho grants and contracts issucd by DCS must
comply with applicable state and Federal laws, regulations and program rules. Fiscal staff also
process all grant payment requests, disbursements to sub-grantees, and draw down of funds from
the Federal government for the Federally funded programs. The fiscal staff work with the
program staff to design and implement the grant management systems that the agency uses to
track the various programs,

The grants management systems used by DCS are complex and require continual updating and
maintenance. The fiscal staff also participate with program staff in establishing the policies and
procedures relating to the grant programs. In addition, fiscal staff provide considerable technical
assistance to assist sub-grantees to assist them in properly managing and accounting for program

funds.

All the Federal programs administeied by the Division of Community Services require that the
state monitor the sub-recipients to ensiwre compliance with the program rules as well as Federal
financial management standards, DCW fiscal staff along with program staff conduct these
monitoring visits to assure compliance with both programmatic and financial standards. This
requires DCS fiscal staff to have extensive knowledge and training in Federal grants

management.

Clerical staff also play and important role in office/program support. In addition to what is
considered normal clerical support, DCS clerical staff are taking on an ever greater role in
support of program and fiscal staff. Due to increasing programmatic demands and sheer volume
of grant activity, which has caused fiscal staff to be more involved in program management,
clerical staff have had to assume some of the duties that have traditionally been that of fiscal
staff. Examples include: data entry for fiscal tracking systems; assisting in processing grants &
contracts; and processing of grai ¢ closeouts.

Due to the extensive record keeping requirements of DCS programs, clerical staff work closely
with programmatic staff to maintain the agencies record management system. This requires
considerable experience and knowledge of federal programmatic records retention/processing
requitements.

The Division of Community Services is unique because of the variety of interrelated Federal



programs administered by the agency. Most of the programs are able to leverage other programs
in the agency to use the funds more efficiently, The experience and knowledge of tho
programmatic, fiscal, and administrative staff adds to the efficiency and effectiveness of program

delivery,
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Mr. Chairman and metnbers of the committee my name is Jim Hirsch, Director of the North
Dakota Workforce Development Cotncil,

Retention of North Dakota's youth and reducing the out migration of the State's population are
dependent upon the creation of high skill, high pay jubs in the State.

o The lack of available workers and skill shortages has prevented some North Dakota

businesses from expanding and is a major obstacle when recruiting new business to the
State. {

L

At the same time, in parts of our state there is an available labor pool that is being
underutilized. Job creation projects are needed in the rural and reservation areas of our

state.

Customized training options need to be developed to allow dislocated workers and
underemployed workers the ability to retrain, in a short period of time, for high wage and

high skill jobs.

The recruitment of a workforce to support creation of high skill, high wage jobs are important
for business retention, expansion and new business starts.

o Employers need to have cutrent wage survey data so that the can effectively recruit
workers. If the wage being offered is below market or below the competition (intra or
interstate) recruitment will not work.

o Economic development professionals and site selectors need information related to the
state’s workforce. This could include information on:
o workforce availability,
o workforce skill sets,

o underemployment,




o worker dislocations,
o workforce productivity,
o absenteeism,

o turnover rates, etc.

The available workforce needs to have the education and skill training demanded by those
businesses and industries creating the employment opportunities in the State.

o The partners of North Dakota's Workforce Development System need to have a common

vision and work toward a common goal.

» Scarce resources for workforce development and training need to be targeted to support
the State's goals of new job and new wealth creation.

¢ The system needs to have identified outcome goals and a plan for continuous quality

improvement.

The Workforce Development Division would provide a single point of contact for business, site
selectors, economic development professionals, and others wishing to obtain information and/or
sources of information related to North Dakota's workforce and programs and services to

educate and train the workforce,

A successful response to work force recruitment, workforce development and workforce training
requires coordination and collaboration between all the partners in the Workforce Development

i System,
This system includes:

. | o those agencies charged with the delivery of human resource programs and services that
are designed to recruit workers and develop disadvantaged and underutilized segments of

the population;

. o the local, state and private workforce development and workforce training providers who
R  educate and train the State's workforce; and




o the private sector employers and development corporations who develop and create new

high skill, high wage jobs which results in employment for the workforce and new
. wealth creation for the State.

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM PARTNERS

A A LOPMENT DIVISION




The Workforce Development System partners must share a common vision and coordinate their use
of scarce resources to achieve desired goals.

The State’s Workforce Development System must be flexible and quickly able to respond to
demands brought about by labor shortages, a high-tech society and a work-based welfare system.

This response must support and create new linkages between employers and potential employees.

The coordination of the North Dakota Workforce Development System could be accomplished
through activities of the North Dakota Workforce Development Council which is a support function

of the North Dakota Workferce Development Division.
The North Dakota Workforce Development Council was authorized under executive order 95-01,
The Council is a twenty five member board which serves in an Advisory capacity to the Governor.

The Council membership includes representation from the private sector, organized labor,
education, community based organizations and the State agency heads responsible for the
administration of the federal funded human resource programs identified in the Workforce

Investment Act,

Responsibilities of the Council includ~:
o the coordination and the development of a common vision for the North Dakota Workforce

Development System, and

¢ Recommendation of policies and goals for the system that support the Governors vision for
economic development, new job creation and new wealth creation for the State

Having the Workforce Development Division housed in the Department of Commerce would
provide Workforce Development with greater synergies through integration, collaboration and
coordination with the other Divisions. An available workforce is critical to economic development

~ and tourism in North Dakota.




During the next biennium, it will be critical for the State to develop a comprehensive plan to:

¢ address the development of a workforce statistical data base which will meet the needs of

site selectors, business and development professionals;

e to develop a plan and an approach to target workforce recruitment to attract workers and

former residents back to the state; and

e Develop a "Retumn on Investment” model should be adopted by the system to provide an

accounting for the use of resoutces.
The Workforce Development Division could be the catalyst to allow this to happen.

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, workforce has emerged as one of the most important
issues effecting new job creation and new wealth creation for State.

Most mid-westetn states aro facing similar problems,

The States who are successful in devéloping their available labor pools and recruiting critical skill
shortages will be the winners, The creation of a Department of Commeice will position the State of

North Dakota to be a leader in this effort.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions,
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 Workforce is an important issue for the State of North Dakota. The nature of the workforce issue

varies from community to community.

» In some communities, the lack of an available workforce and skill shortages has prevented
some North Dakota businesses from expanding ;

o At the same time, in other communities, there is an available labor poo! that is being
underutilized due to unemployment and underemployment.; and

e Across the State, customized training options are needed to allow dislocated workers and

underemployed workers an opportunity to retrain in a short period of time for available

employment opportunities in the State.

Currently, workforce issues and problems have not been documented and needs assessments have
not been formalized. Information and intelligence gathering on the State's workforce is being carried
out by a number of agencies and organizations. There is no central "warehousing” of data to make it

available for comprehensive planning to address workforce needs in the State.

In order to effectively respond the specific issues or problems must be identified so that the

Workforce Development System can bring their collective resources to bear on resolution of the

problem,

Accurate and up to date data on the State's workforce is necessary to respond to labor shortages, job

shortages and customized training program shortages.

o In order to effectively recruit a workforce, employets need to havo current wage survey
data. If the wage being offered is below market or below the competition (intra or
interstate) recruitment will not work,

o To develop and deliver customized training, information is needed on the job ckills
required by growth industries in the State and the number of vacancies anticipated
through normal attrition, current and projected expansion plans,

¢ To support new job creation and expansion pi'ojects, economic development professionals
and site selectors need information related to the state’s workforce. This could include

information on:
o workforce availability,

o workforce skill sets,




worker dislocations,
workforce productivity,
absenteeism,

tumover rates, etc.
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The Workforce Development Division should provide a single point of contact for business, site
selectors, economic development professionals, educators, workforce training providers, and others

wishing to obtain information and/or sources of information related to North Dakota's workforce.

At this time, the structure is not in place to make this a reality.

A successful response to the workforce issues facing the state requires coordination and

collaboration between all the partners in the Workforce Development System.

This system includes:

o those agencies charged with the delivery of human resource programs and services that are
designed to recruit workers and develop disadvantaged and underutilized segments of the

population;

¢ the local, state and private workforce development and workforce training providers who

educate and train the State's workforce; and

¢ the private sector employers and development corporations who develep and create new
high skill, high wage jobs which resuits in employment for the workforce and new wealth

creation for the State.




The Workforce Development System partners must share a common vision and

coordinate their use of scarce resources to achieve desired goals.

The State’s Workforce Development System must be flexible and quickly able to
respond to demands brought about by labor shortages, a high-tech society and a
work-based welfare system.

This response must support and create new linkages between employers and

potential employees.

Having the Workforce Development Division housed in the Department of
Commerce would provide Workforce Development with greater synergies through

integration, collaboration and ccordination with the other Divisions.

During the 01 -03 biennium, the Workforce Development Division would lead a

process to document and define the workforce issues and problems, conduct needs

assessments and coordinated the development of plans of action to resolve specific

workforce issues.

Goal One: Conduct a workforce availability assessment:
We need to determine the areas of the State where we have actual workforce shortages,
skill gap éhortages, underemployment and unemployment,
Tactic One: Work with business, economic development professionals, and
site selector's to identify the workforce availability data they
require to make decisions on business expansion and business

locations to the State.
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Tactic Two: Based on the input, develop a plan and an approach which will
gather the workforce availability data by capturing the
information from current clients of the mandatory and voluntary
partner's of the One Stop Delivery System.

Tactic Three: Determine 'gaps' and identify options or sources of the
information needed to fill the gaps.

Tactic Four: Identify or develop a recommendation to create a "central
warehousing” data base to store data on workforce availability.

Goal Two: Develop "Core" workforce statistical information:
Weneed to determine what "workforce statistical information" is needed by the users of
the information and conduct "data mapping" to identify what information is available
and where it is available,

Tactic One: By working with economic development professionals, site
selectors, business representatives and key partners of the
Workforce Development System, identify “core" workforce
statistical data requirements,

Tactic Two: Based on "core’ workforce statistical data requirements agreed
to, conduct "Data Mapping" to identify information already
available and the source of the information.

Tactic Three: Determine the gaps in "core" workforce statistical data
requirements and develop a plan to fill in the gaps in

information,

Tactic Four: Identify or develop a recommendation to create a "central
warchousing” data base for "core" workforce statistical
information that would be available on a Web Site with "hot
links" to additional workforce statistical information available

through various agencies and organizations.



Goal Three:

Tactic One:

Tactic Two:

Tactic Three:

Goal Four:

Document "' job skilis” requirements of expanding industries:

We need to document the job skill requirements for business and industry and to
determine the job skills required as a result of normal attrition, current vacancies and

projected vacancies resulting form expansions.

Through private industry and working with the Greater North
Dakota Association's New Economy Initiative, develop support
from the Industry Clusters to conduct a survey of current "job
skill" requirements of their membership.

Through the Industry Clusters, survey the current workforce
levels by job skill, current vacancies by job skill and projected
vacancies by job skill.

Identify or develop a recommendation to create a "central
warchousing” data base for industry job skill and vacancy

information,

Develop a "grant and proposal" response capability:

We need to develop our grant and proposal writing capabilities to allow communities,
agencies and organizations to apply for federal and private funding to address

Develop consortiums and partnerships to help define workforce
issues and problems and develop responses to address the
specific workforce issues related to their community or
quadrant,

Research funding opportunities to access federal and private
foundation funding to implement planned responses to
workforce issues.

} workforce issues and problems.
f Tactic One:
i
- .
I Tactic Two:
Tactic Three:

Develop a "grant and proposal' writing expertise and provide
technical assistance to communities, agencies and organizations
delivering services to address identified workforce issues.




Goal Five:

Research "Best Practices and participate in activities targeted at

recruitment of workers or development of an available

workiorce.

We need to develop plans to support workforce recruitment (intra and interstate) to

needs.

Tactic One:

Tactic Two:

Tactic Four:

Tactic Five:

Tactic Six:

meet business

Work with employers and communities experiencing workforce
and skill shortages to identify the specific skill gaps between
the available workforce and employer requirements,
Coordinate development of salary surveys to insure North
Dakota employers have current and up to date wage and fringe
benefit data to use in their recruitment efforts.

Based on documented skill shortages and docwmnented
underemployment develop options to provide job skill training
to the available workforce to help them mecet employer
requirements.

To address a lack of an available workforce, work with business
and communities to develop plans to support recruitment from
those areas of the State experiencing high unemployment or
underutilization of their labor force as well as areas outside
North Dakota experiencing significant worker dislocations and
pockets of high unemployment,

Identify specific job opportunities in high skill, high pay jobs
that would be candidates for out of state recruitinent and
determine avenues for exposing these openings to potential
candidates outside of North Dakota,

Identify those entrepreneurial opportunities which would bring
skilled, high tech workers to North Dakota rural communities.




Tactic Seven: Research what other states are doing to attract workers to their
State, including targeted industry recruitment, participation in
job fairs, open houses, etc.

Workforce has emerged as one of the most important issues facing the State.

We must get a handle on what we as a State must to do and are prepared to do.
Through the North Dakota Workforce Development System, the resources are available
to address many of the workforce issues. The challenge is to coordinate and martial the

use of these resources in support of a common vision and common goal for new job

creation and new wealth creation in the state.




